
 

 

Tree Committee Members: 
Kacey Stotesbery – Chair 

Edie Kausch – Vice Chair 

Carol Troy 

Connie Kay 

Scott Freeland 

Susan Allen – Alternate 

Joan Westgate – Alternate 

  

AGENDA 

ST. HELENA TREE COMMITTEE 

ST. HELENA CITY HALL, CONFERENCE ROOM 

1480 MAIN STREET, ST. HELENA 

Regular Meeting – Thursday, September 10, 2015 

3:30 pm – 5:00 pm 

1. ROLL CALL 

2. PUBLIC FORUM: An opportunity for the public to directly address the Committee on items of 

interest to the public that are not listed on the agenda. Any person addressing the Committee should 

provide his or her name and address, and limit comments to five minutes. Because of restrictions 

imposed by the Brown Act, the Committee may not engage in substantive discussion, nor take 

action on matters not described on the agenda. 

3. REPORTS BY STAFF AND COMMITTEE: Reports by staff and/or committee on items of 

general interest. Brief questions for clarification may be posed and answered, and Committee may 

request that items be placed on a future agenda. Except under certain circumstances, the Brown 

Act prohibits any other discussion or action by the Tree Committee.  

4. CONSENT CALENDAR: Members of the Tree Committee or the public may ask that any items be 

considered individually for purposes of considering alternative action, for extended discussion, or for 

public comment. Unless that is done, on motion may be used to adopt all recommendation actions. 

A. Tree Committee Regular Meeting Minutes of August 13, 2015. 

Estimated time: 5 minutes. 

5. PERMITS TO BE REVIEWED:  

A. None. 

6. SCHEDULED MATTERS: 

 

A. Appointment: Tree Committee to appointment another member to join Susan Allen on the 

Mennen Re-Oaking of St. Helena sub-committee. – Chair Stotesbery  

Estimated time: 5 minutes. 



B. Discussion: Tree Committee to review Tree Management Guidelines (a guideline that 

provides directions to staff, tree committee members and the public about City trees) – Chair 

Stotesbery  

Estimated time: 15 minutes. 

C. Discussion: Tree Committee review protocols proposed by Chair Stotesbery and to establish 

affirm a protocol to follow when reviewing, approving and denying tree permits.  – Chair 

Stotesbery  

Estimated time: 15 minutes. 

D. Discussion: Tree Committee to review and update outstanding mitigated tree list from 

approved tree permit removals.  – City Arborist Uribe 

Estimated time: 15 minutes. 

E. Discussion: Provide an opportunity for new Tree Committee members to review in an open 

discussion what proposed revisions to the Tree Ordinance were made by previous tree 

committee members, and to review drafting comments received from Mayor Galbraith to 

Chair Stotesbery. – Chair Stotesbery  

 Proposed Draft Ordinance

 Drafting comments from Galbraith

Estimated time: 30 minutes. 

7. TENTATIVE AGENDA ITEMS FOR NEXT MEETING:

A. Committee to decide which items to place on agenda for next meeting. 

Estimated time: 5 minutes. 

8. ADJOURNMENT: Adjourn to a regularly scheduled meeting of the Tree Committee on October 8,

2015. 

_________________________ 

This agenda was posted at City Hall, 1480 Main Street, St. Helena, California on September 4, 2015. - 

Kathy Robinson, Operations Manager 



Tree Committee Members: 
Kacey Stotesbery - Chair 

Edie Kausch – Vice Chair 

Carol Troy 

Connie Kay 

Scott Freeland 

Susan Allen-Alternate 

Joan Westgate-Alternate 

MINUTES 

ST. HELENA TREE COMMITTEE 

ST. HELENA CITY HALL, CONFERENCE ROOM 

1480 MAIN STREET, ST. HELENA 

Regular Meeting – Thursday, August 13, 2015 

3:30 pm – 5:00 pm 

1. ROLL CALL

Present: Kasey Stotesbery (later arrival), Edie Kausch, Carol Troy, Connie Kay, Scott Freeland,

Susan Allen and Joan Westgate. 

Absent: None. 

Staff: Operations Manager Kathy Robinson, City Arborist Jim Haller and Carols Uribe and 

Water Conservation Coordinator Jennifer Tuell. 

2. PUBLIC FORUM: An opportunity for the public to directly address the Committee on items of

interest to the public that are not listed on the agenda. Any person addressing the Committee should

provide his or her name and address, and limit comments to five minutes. Because of restrictions

imposed by the Brown Act, the Committee may not engage in substantive discussion, nor take

action on matters not described on the agenda.

Committee action: Received comments from public. 

3. REPORTS BY STAFF AND COMMITTEE: Reports by staff and/or committee on items of

general interest. Brief questions for clarification may be posed and answered, and Committee may

request that items be placed on a future agenda. Except under certain circumstances, the Brown

Act prohibits any other discussion or action by the Tree Committee.

Committee action: Staff member Robinson reported that with the appointment of new members, the 

Tree Committee was running the meeting without the presence of a Chair or Vice Chair and suggested 

that the committee consider making a motion for Scheduled Matters Item 6.A of the agenda to moved 

up and be heard before Consent Calendar. Committee Member Freeland moved to make the motion, 

seconded by Committee Member Troy, and approved (3-1). 

4. CONSENT CALENDAR: Members of the Tree Committee or the public may ask that any items be

considered individually for purposes of considering alternative action, for extended discussion, or for

public comment. Unless that is done, on motion may be used to adopt all recommendation actions.

ITEM 4A 



 

 

A. Tree Committee Regular Meeting Minutes of June 11, 2015. 

B. Tree Committee Special Meeting Minutes of June 18, 2015. 

C. Tree Committee Regular Meeting Minutes of July 9, 2015. 

Committee action: Committee Chair Stotesbery moved to approve Consent Item A, B, and C, seconded 

by Vice Chair Kausch, approved (5-0). 

5. PERMITS TO BE REVIEWED:  

A. 1325 Adams Street – applicant is requesting to remove one Little Leaf Linden located in the 

sidewalk of Adams Street. Applicant also request to grind stump and replant. 

 

Committee Action: Committee Member Kausch motion to allow removal of Linden and replant 

with another 15 gallon Linden tree by March 1, 2016, seconded by Committee Member 

Freeland, approved (5-0). 

B. 1098 Pope Street (Wappo Park) – St. Helena Water Department (applicant) requesting 

removal of Fremont Cottonweed tree growing next to irrigation pump station which is 

preventing accessibility for maintenance and repairs of the irrigation pump. 

Committee Action: Chair Stotesbery motion to allow removal and replant with a large Valley 

Oak to be planted in the dog park in a place to be determined by the City Arborist and planted 

no later than March 1, 2016, seconded by Vice Chair Kausch, approved (5-0). 

6. SCHEDULED MATTERS: 

 

A. Tree Committee new members introduction and appointed a new chair and new co-chair for a 

one year term. – Staff member Operations Manager Kathy Robinson  

Committee Action: Committee Member Freeland motioned to nominate Stotesbery to be Chair, 

seconded by Committee Member Troy then Committee Member Stotesbery moved to table the 

first motion to have an opportunity to discuss commitment that a new Vice Chair would be 

there to fully support the Tree Committee’s initiatives, seconded by Committee Member Kay, 

and approved (5-0).  

 

Committee Member Troy motioned to nominate Kausch to be Vice Chair, seconded by 

Committee Member Freeland, and approved (5-0).  

 

Committee Vice Chair Kausch motions to bring back tabled motion of nominating Stotesbery 

as Chair, seconded by Committee Member Freeland to nominate Stotesbery for Chair, and 

approved (5-0). 
 

B. Discussion: Review of Tree Committee recent short term and long term goals finalized at the 

June 18, 2015 Special meeting allowing the new Tree Committee members an opportunity to 

ask questions and provide feedback. – Staff member Operations Manager Kathy Robinson  



 

 

 

Committee Action: No action. Discussion occurred. 
 

C. Presentation: Update from Water Conservation Program. – Staff member Water 

Conservation Coordinator Jennifer Tuell  

1. Water Update 

2. Upcoming Events and Programs 

3. Demonstration Garden 

 
Committee Action: No action. Discussion occurred. 

 

7. TENTATIVE AGENDA ITEMS FOR NEXT MEETING:   

 

A. Committee to decide which items to place on agenda for next meeting. 

 
Committee Action: review tree management guide, review mitigated outstanding tree list, 

review tree permit protocols, review proposed Tree Ordinance, and nominate a second member 

to be on the Mennen sub-committee. 
 

8. ADJOURNMENT: Adjourn to a regularly scheduled meeting of the Tree Committee on October 8, 

2015. 

_________________________ 

This agenda was posted at City Hall, 1480 Main Street, St. Helena, California on August 6, 2015. - 

Kathy Robinson, Operations Manager 

 



This page intentionally left blank.



CITY OF ST. HELENA 
DEPARTMENT OF 
PUBLIC WORKS 

Prepared By: Sponsored By: 

City of St. Helena 
Tree Committee 

City of St. Helena 
Tree Management Guide

First Edition;  
Adopted; ____, 200_ 
Resolution No.   ___ 

���
���

���
	
��

��
��

��
�

ITEM 6B



City of St. Helena  Draft 
Tree Management Guide  April 23, 2008 

Page 1 of 36 

FORWARD 
A note from Susan Smith, Tree Committee Member, July 2005 

 
St. Helena is a city of special character and rich history. It continues to grow and evolve in a 

valley so favored by nature that its fruits carry our name around the world. Our harvests are 

perhaps secondary to the unique quality of living in the embrace of such bounty, and to the 

diverse mix of our citizens – their industry and ingenuity, their spirit and wisdom. 

We might resolve to preserve the trees of St. Helena merely to return the favor to Nature for our 

fortune. But this has always been a valley of practical farmers and workers, struggling against 

droughts and pests. We choose to plant, tend and protect our native trees for practical, sensible 

reasons. We resolve to see beyond short horizons and immediate gains to the long-range wisdom 

of balance and conservation. Nature has been more than kind; it has been instructive. Trees 

simply make sense. 

It’s sensible for the City of St. Helena to declare the importance of its trees in municipal life, and 

to mandate their protection. Our trees are beautiful, surely, and they enhance the quality of life, 

here. They anchor our property values just as they anchor our soil to retard erosion. They provide 

welcome shade in a warm climate, and shelter against insistent winds. They cleanse the very air, 

soften the dryness of summer, and dampen unwelcome noise.  

Our trees are the most visible trace of the complex web that binds climate, soil, wildlife and 

humans in a powerful but delicate process of growth and symbiosis. They are the homes for 

wildlife and they shelter our homes. They lend identity to our neighborhoods. They exist outside 

our scale of years, rising slowly and enduring stubbornly to remind us of the history and 

traditions of our valley home. 

The City of St. Helena and the St. Helena Tree Committee conserve our urban forestry, promote 

the health of our trees, and encourage fresh planting because trees make sense – practically, 

financially, historically, socially, naturally and aesthetically. We see the mixed municipal forest of 

our city as a sign of present and continued municipal success. 

We’ve officially recognized the city’s resolve by creating the Tree Preservation Management 

Regulations. It puts the wishes of our citizens into laws, regulations and technical specifications. It 

is a body of law that mandates the preservation of our tree resources and establishes the 

significant goals to which the city must direct itself and its citizens. These Regulations provide 

direction for us and those who will take our place. They establish rules and penalties that ensure 

continuing care and compliance. Using this tool of law, the city can maintain property values by 

forbidding irresponsible fellings, damaging arborial management and inept construction 

practices that might degrade property values and the visual signature of St. Helena. 



City of St. Helena  Draft 
Tree Management Guide  April 23, 2008 

Page 2 of 36 

Published By:   City of St. Helena 
   Public Works Department 
   1480 Main St.  
   St. Helena, CA 94574 
 
Acknowledgement: This section shall acknowledge those persons involved in the 

preparation of the Tree Technical Manual.  
 
 Meghan L. Maloney, Junior Engineer 
 City of St. Helena Public Works Department 
 
 Jim Haller, City Arborist 
 City of St. Helena Public Works Department 
 
Special Thanks To: Tree Committee in place during the preparation of the Tree Management 

Guide 
 
 Thomas Burke 
 Thamaus Ehr 
 Sandra Price 
 Susan Smith 
 Carol Spencer 
 Marty Oldford 
 Susan McWilliams 
 



City of St. Helena  Draft 
Tree Management Guide  April 23, 2008 

Page 3 of 36 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
          Page 

 Intent and Purpose        4 
 

 Section 1.0 Introduction – Use Of The Manual    5 
 

 Section 2.0 Definitions       8 
 

 Section 3.0 Protection Of Trees During Construction   15 
 

 Section 4.0 Removal And Replacement     22 
 

 Section 5.0 Hazardous Trees      26 
 

 Section 6.0 Tree Maintenance      29 
 

 Section 7.0 Tree Reports       34 
 

 Appendix         36 



City of St. Helena  Draft 
Tree Management Guide  April 23, 2008 

Page 4 of 36 

INTENT AND PURPOSE 
 
Intent 
The City of St. Helena finds and declares that trees contribute greatly to the health, safety, and 
general welfare of all of the city’s citizens and that the preservation and proper maintenance of 
trees is a matter of city-wide concern.  
 
Trees provide great aesthetic benefits by acting as windbreaks, providing summer shade, noise 
abatement, erosion control, acting as filters against airborne pollutants, and by providing habitat 
for wildlife. In addition, trees in the community and in a neighborhood provide a sense of 
identity and tradition as well as enhance property values. 
 
The City of St. Helena and the St. Helena Tree Committee continue to promote the expansion and 
protection of the urban forest within St. Helena. St. Helena is recognized by the State of California 
and National Arbor Day Foundation as a Tree City-USA. 
 
Tree Preservation and Management Regulations are the City’s primary regulatory tool to provide 
for orderly protection of specified trees, to promote the health, safety, welfare, and quality of life 
for the residents of the City, to protect property values and to avoid significant negative impacts 
on adjacent properties. By assuring preservation and protection through regulations and 
standards of care, these resources will remain significant contributions to the landscape, streets 
and parks — and continue to help define the unique character of St. Helena. 
 
Purpose 
The St. Helena Tree Technical Manual is a separately published document formalized by City 
Council Resolution, through the Department of Public Works to establish specific technical 
regulations, standards and specifications necessary to implement the Ordinance, and to achieve 
the City’s tree preservation goals. These goals are intended to provide consistent care and serve 
as indicators to measure achievement in the following areas:  

 Insure and promote preservation of the existing urban forest within City limits 
 Provide standards of maintenance required for protected trees 
 Provide standards for the replacement of trees  
 Increase the survivability of trees during and after construction events by providing 

protection standards and best management practices 
 Provide guidelines and suggestions to St. Helena residents regarding the general care 

and maintenance of trees 



City of St. Helena  Draft 
Tree Management Guide  April 23, 2008 

Page 5 of 36 

Section 1 
Introduction – Use of the Manual 

Section 1.0 
 
I. ST. HELENA’S PROTECTED TREES 
 
A. St. Helena Municipal Code 
Title 12.24 protects specific trees on public or private property from removal or disfigurement. 
The Tree Technical Manual establishes procedures and standards for the purpose of encouraging 
the preservation of trees.  
 
Trees that fall within the following four categories are considered “Protected Trees”, and must be 
maintained in accordance with the standards and regulations contained in the Manual. A permit 
from the Public Works Department is required prior to removal of a Protected Tree.  
 
Trees that are not in any of these categories may be maintained or removed without City review 
or approval. 
 
Protected Trees 
The following trees are protected within the City limits of St. Helena: 

1. Any Valley, Blue, Black, Coast, or Interior native Oak at least six inches (6”) in diameter 
at breast height; 

2. Madrone, Douglas Fir, Redwood, Red or White Cedar, Big Leaf Maple, Buckeye, Bay 
Laurel, or Fremont Cottonwood at least eight inches (8”) in diameter at breast height; 

3. Any non-native tree at least eight inches (8”) in diameter at breast height. 
 
Street Trees 
All trees growing within the street right-of-way (publicly-owned), outside of private property or 
on an easement dedicated to the City. In some cases, property lines lie several feet behind the 
sidewalks. A permit from the Public Works Department is required prior to any work on or 
within the dripline of any ‘street tree’. Please contact the Department of Public Works if you are 
unsure if a tree is a street tree. 
 
Designated Trees 
All trees, when associated with a development project and are specifically designated by the City 
to be saved  and which is subject to a discretionary development review; such as a variance, home 
improvement exception, architectural review, site and design, subdivision, etc. Approval from 
the Public Works Department is required to remove a designated tree. 
 
Heritage Trees 
Property owners and/or the St. Helena Tree Committee may nominate a tree for protection so 
that the protection is tied to the title of the land. Upon nomination, and with the written 
permission of the owner of the candidate tree, a candidate tree after review may be designated as 
a heritage tree by City Council if it meets the following criteria: 

 
 
1. Historical significance; 
2. Over eleven inches (11”) in diameter measured at breast height; 
3. Unique or rare horticultural specimen; 
4. Uniqueness of size or age; 
5. Aesthetic values due to symmetry, form, color, or other qualities; 
6. An outstanding specimen of a desirable species, especially native Oak; 



City of St. Helena  Draft 
Tree Management Guide  April 23, 2008 

Page 6 of 36 

7. Significance for habitat preservation, including where a tree is one of a group of trees 
each dependant on the other for survival. 

 
The approval is recorded at the Napa County Recorder’s office and tied to the property title until 
removed through a public hearing by the St. Helena City Council. A list of designated heritage 
trees is kept in the Public Works office. 
 
B. Protected Categories 
Throughout the Manual, the designation of “Protected Trees” shall refer to all those trees or 
groups of trees included in the above four categories.  
 
 
II. REQUIRED PRACTICES 
Required Practices are to be implemented by the property owner, project applicant, contractor or 
designee - and are the minimum standards by which the care of a Protected Tree is to be 
administered. 
 
The Required Practices category identified throughout the Manual are reasonable measures that 
are consistent with best management practices in the tree care industry and are intended to 
promote healthy, structurally sound trees. 
 
In all such cases, the Director of Public Works, City Arborist or authorized staff shall, if justified 
by field conditions such as conflict with utilities or a public nuisance, have the discretion to 
modify or add to any condition, practice or standard mentioned within the Manual. 
 
 
III. RECOMMENDED PRACTICES 
The Recommended Practices identified throughout the Manual are not mandatory, but provide 
additional proactive measures for the care of trees, such as fertilizing, reducing a tree hazard, 
protection from specific disturbances or procedures for planting trees on problem sites. 
 
Note: A recommended practice may be required if it is so specified within the ‘conditions of 
approval’ for a development project or mitigation for injury or disturbance. 
 
In all cases, the Director of Public Works, City Arborist, or authorized city staff,  shall, if justified 
by changing field conditions such as conflict with utilities, have discretion to modify, redesignate 
or add to any condition, practice or standard mentioned within the Manual. 
 
 
IV. DEFINITIONS 
Certain terms are unique to the arboricultural or construction industry and are defined to 
provide a uniform understanding of the terms and concepts used and mentioned in this 
document. Industry specific words used in this document are found in the Definitions section of 
this manual and in the tree ordinance, SHMC Title 12.24.020. 
 
V. APPENDICES 
The appendices at the end of this Manual provide supplemental information referenced within 
the Manual and sources of technical information for specific or unusual situations. 
 
 
VI. ASSUMPTIONS AND LIMITING CONDITIONS 




City of St. Helena  Draft 
Tree Management Guide  April 23, 2008 

Page 7 of 36 

 No responsibility is assumed by the City of St. Helena for matters legal in character 
regarding this Manual. Any legal description that may be provided is assumed to be 
correct. 

 Care has been taken to obtain reasonable information from reliable sources for this 
Manual. 

 Visual aids within this Manual, such as sketches, diagrams, graphs, photos, are not 
necessarily to scale and should not be construed as engineered data for construction. 

 This Manual has been crafted to conform to current standards of care, best management 
practices, evaluation and appraisal procedures, diagnostic and reporting techniques and 
sound arboricultural practices as recommended by the sources listed in the References 
section of the appendix. 



City of St. Helena  Draft 
Tree Management Guide  April 23, 2008 

Page 8 of 36 

Section 2 
DEFINITIONS 

Section 2.0 
 

1. Alter means to take an action that could foreseeable diminish the health and vigor of a 
tree. Alter includes but is not limited to: excessive or improper pruning of a tree, grade 
changes around or near a tree, excessive irrigation of a tree, and trenching in the root zone 
of a tree. Alter does not include periodic pruning of a tree to preserve or protect its 
health, growth or appearance, in accordance with accepted arboricultural standards and 
practices. 

 
2. Appraisal (see Tree Appraisal) 

 
3. Arborist, see certified arborist, city arborist, certified city tree worker, project arborist. 

 
4. Building Area means the area of a parcel that (1) upon which, under applicable zoning 

regulations, a structure may be built without a variance, design enhancement exception, 
or home improvement exception or; (2) is necessary for the construction of primary 
access to structures located on the parcel, where there exists no feasible means of access 
which would avoid protected trees. On single-family residential parcels, the portion of 
the parcel deemed to be the building area access shall not exceed ten (10) feet in width. 

 
5. Building Footprint means the two-dimensional configuration of a building’s perimeter 

boundaries measured on a horizontal plane at grade level. 
 

6. Candidate Heritage Tree means a tree designated by the tree committee of a size, 
species or historical value that makes it eligible for heritage tree status. 

 
7. Certified Arborist is an individual who has demonstrated knowledge and 

competency through obtainment of the current International Society of 
Arboriculture arborist certification, or who is a member of the American Society of 
Consulting Arborists.  

 
8. Certified Tree Worker means a person who has been tested by and is currently 

certified as "tree worker" by the International Society of Arboriculture. 
 

9. City means and includes all territory over which the city now has, or shall 
hereafter acquire, jurisdiction for the exercise of its police powers or other 
regulatory powers. 

 
10. City Arborist means a certified arborist designated by the Director of Public 

Works. 
 

11. Committee means the tree committee established pursuant to SHMC Title 12. 
 

12. Compaction means compression of the soil structure or texture by any means that 
creates an upper layer that is impermeable. Compaction is injurious to roots and the 
health of a tree (see Soil Compaction Damage). 

 
13. Dangerous (see Hazardous) 

 



City of St. Helena  Draft 
Tree Management Guide  April 23, 2008 

Page 9 of 36 

14. Dead Tree means a tree that is dead or that has been damaged beyond repair or is 
in an advanced state of decline (where an insufficient amount of live tissue, green 
leaves, limbs or branches, exists to sustain life) and has been determined to be 
such by a certified arborist. If the tree has been determined to be dead, removal is 
permitted under SHMC Tire 12.24.060. 

 
15. Designated Tree means all trees that are specifically designated by the city to be 

saved and protected on a public or private property which is subject to 
discretionary development approval, such as a variance, home improvement 
exception, architectural review, site and design, subdivision, etc. Designated trees 
are to be indicated on approved building permit or landscape plans. 

 
16. Diameter at Breast Height (DBH) or Diameter at Standard Height means the 

diameter of the perimeter tree trunk at four and one-half feet (or 54 inches) above 
natural grade level. See ‘Protected trees’ for diameters of different species. The 
diameter may be calculated by using the following formula: DBH= circumference 
at 4.5-feet x 3.142 (D=C x b). To determine the DBH of multi-trunk trees or 
measuring trees on slopes, consult the current Guide for Plant Appraisal, published 
by the Council of Tree and Landscape Appraisers. 

 
17. Director means the Director of Public Works or the Director’s designee, unless 

otherwise specified in the Manual. 
 

18. Discretionary Development Approval means a planned community zone, 
subdivision, use permit, variance, home improvement exception, design 
enhancement exception, or Architectural Review Board approval. 

 
19. Disturbance refers to all of the various activities from construction or 

development that may damage trees. 
 

20. Dripline Area means the area within X distance from the trunk of a tree, measured 
from the perimeter of the trunk of the tree at 54-inches above natural grade, where 
X equals a distance ten times the diameter of the trunk at 54-inches above natural 
grade.  

 
21. Excessive Pruning means: removing in excess, one-fourth (25 percent) or greater, 

of the functioning leaf, stem or root area. Pruning in excess of 25 percent is 
injurious to the tree and is a prohibited act. Excessive pruning typically results in 
the tree appearing as a ‘bonsai’, ‘lion’s-tailed’, ‘lolly-popped’ or overly thinned. 

 
a. Unbalanced Crown. Excessive pruning also includes removal of the leaf or 

stem area predominantly on one side, topping, or excessive tree canopy or 
crown raising. Exceptions are when clearance from overhead utilities or 
public improvement is required or to abate a hazardous condition or a 
public nuisance. 

b. Roots. Excessive pruning may include the cutting of any root two (2) inches 
or greater in diameter and/or severing in excess of 25 percent of the roots. 

 
22. Habitat means the region where a plant or animal naturally grows or lives.  

 
23. Hazardous Tree refers to a tree that possesses a structural defect which poses an 

imminent risk if the tree or part of the tree that would fall on someone or 
something of value (target). 

 



City of St. Helena  Draft 
Tree Management Guide  April 23, 2008 

Page 10 of 36 

a. Structural defect means any structural weakness or deformity of a tree or 
its parts. A tree with a structural defect can be verified to be hazardous by a 
certified arborist and confirmed as such by the City Arborist. For the 
purpose of tree removal information required by the City, the tree report 
shall include a completed ISA-TREE HAZARD EVALUATION FORM, or 
an approved equivalent. The City Arborist retains discretionary right to 
approve or amend a hazardous rating, in writing, and recommend any 
action that may reduce the condition to a less-than significant level of 
hazard. If the tree has been determined to be hazardous, removal of the tree 
is permitted under SHMC Tire 12.24.060. 

b. A ‘target’ may mean people, vehicles, structures or property, such as other 
trees or landscape improvements. A tree may not be a hazard if a ‘target’ is 
absent within the falling distance of the tree or its parts (e.g., a 
substandard tree in a non-populated area away from pedestrian pathways 
may not be considered a hazard).   

 
24. Heritage Tree means any tree or grove of trees within the city boundaries 

designated as a heritage tree by a resolution of the city council and having met the 
requirements set forth in this chapter. 

 
25. Heritage Tree Fund means funds which are set aside and administered by the City 

to assist in the cost of maintenance of Heritage trees on private property. Fines 
from violations, mitigations and donated funds shall be the primary funding 
sources. 

 
26. Injury means a wound resulting from any activity, including buy not limited to 

‘excessive pruning’, cutting, trenching, excavating, altering the grade, paving or 
compaction within the tree protection zone of a tree. Injury shall include bruising, 
scarring, tearing or breaking of roots, bark, trunk, branches or foliage, herbicide or 
poisoning, or any other action foreseeably leading to the death or permanent 
damage to tree health. 

 
27. Landscape Architect means an individual holding a valid license to practice 

landscape architecture in the State of California. 
 

28. Maintain or Maintenance means trimming, pruning, pest management, injecting, 
fertilizing, cabling, treating for injury and other similar acts which promote the 
life, growth, health or beauty of trees and other plants, excepting watering only, 
unless specifically so stated. 

 
29. Master Street Tree List means the list of trees approved for planting in planting 

strips and planting easements, as approved by the city council. 
 

30. Master Tree Plan means the plan designating specific trees and maintenance 
practices for specific locations in areas of the city, as approved by the city council. 

 
31. Planting Easement means an easement held by the city on private property for 

sidewalks, plantings and/or utilities. 
 

32. Planting Strip means the portion of the public right-of-way between the curb, 
gutter or edge of street surfacing and the property line, but excluding curbs and 
sidewalks. 

 



City of St. Helena  Draft 
Tree Management Guide  April 23, 2008 

Page 11 of 36 

33. Project Arborist means a certified arborist retained by a property owner or 
development applicant for the purpose of overseeing on-site activity involving the 
welfare of the trees to be retained. The project arborist shall be responsible for all 
reports, appraisals, tree preservation plans, or inspections as required. 

 
34. Property owner means the person listed on the then-current assessor’s roll as the 

owner of a designated property. 
 

35. Protected Tree means: 
 

a. All Coast Live Oak, Quercus agrifoia, Valley Oak, Quercus lobata that are 
11.5-inches or greater in diameter (36-inches in circumference measured at 
54-inches above natural grade) and Coast Redwood, Sequoia sempervirens 
trees that are 18-inches or greater in diameter (57-inches in circumference 
measured at 54-inches above natural grade) and Heritage trees, individual 
trees of any size or species designated by City Council having distinctive 
characteristics such as great age, large, unique form of possess historical 
significance. 

 
36. Protective Tree Fencing means a temporary enclosure erected around a tree to be 

protected at the boundary of the tree protection zone. The fence serves three 
primary functions: 1) to keep the foliage crown, branch structure and trunk clear 
from direct contact and damage by equipment, materials or disturbances; 2) to 
preserve roots and soil in an intact and non-compacted state; and 3) to identify the 
tree protection zone in which no soil disturbance is permitted and activities are 
restricted. 

 
37. Pruning consists of altering the canopy, limbs, trunk, or roots of the tree. 

 
38. Public Nuisance means either an individual tree or shrub on any private property 

or in any street, or a type or species apt to destroy, impair or otherwise interfere 
with any street improvements, sidewalks, curbs, street trees, gutters, sewers, or 
other public improvements, including above and below ground utilities. 

 
39. Public Utility means every gas, electrical, telephone, telegraph, cable and water 

service, waste disposal or recycling corporation where such service is performed 
for the city and its residents. 

 
40. Qualified City Employee, with reference to tree maintenance, means any city park 

or public work’s employee who satisfies the definition of a qualified tree worker 
(Section 3.41) of ANSI A300-1995, complies with the standards of ANSI A300-1995 
while performing tree maintenance, and is deemed so qualified by the director. 

41. Recommended Practice means an action, treatment, technique or procedure that 
may be implemented for superior care or preservation of trees. Recommended 
practices may be required under specific conditions of approval for discretionary 
development projects or injury mitigation. 

 
42. Regulated Tree means any Protected Tree, Street Tree or Designated Tree. 

 
43. Removal means any of the following: 

 
a. Complete tree removal such as cutting to the ground or extraction of the 

tree. 



City of St. Helena  Draft 
Tree Management Guide  April 23, 2008 

Page 12 of 36 

b. Taking any action foreseeably leading to the death of a tree or permanent 
damage to its health or structural integrity, including but not limited to 
excessive pruning, cutting, girdling, poisoning, over watering, 
unauthorized relocation or transportation of a tree, or trenching, 
excavation, altering the grade, or paving within the dripline of the tree. 

 
44. Replacement Tree means any tree that is planted on public or private property as 

a condition of mitigation for the removal of any existing native or heritage tree(s) 
or replacement tree(s).  

 
45. Required Practice means a mandatory action, treatment, technique or standard of 

care required to be implemented by the property owner, developer, contractor or 
designee for the preservation of trees. 

 
46. Root Buffer means a temporary layer of material to protect the soil texture and 

roots. The buffer shall consist of a base course of tree chips spread over the root 
area to a minimum of 6-inch depth, capped by a base course of ¾ -inch plywood 
or top. 

 
47. Root zone means the area of the ground around the trunk of a tree which includes 

the drip line and an additional ten (10) foot wide circular area of ground around 
the outside of the drip line of a tree. 

 
48. SHMC Title 12 refers to St. Helena Municipal Code, Chapter 12, “Trees and other 

Vegetation”. 
 

49. Site Plan means a set of drawings (e.g. preliminary drawings, site plan, grading, 
demolition, building, utilities, landscape, irrigation, tree survey, etc.) that show 
existing site conditions and proposed landscape improvements, including trees to 
be removed, relocated or to be retained. Site plans shall include the following 
minimum information that may impact trees: 

 
a. Surveyed tree location, species, size, dripline area (including trees located 

on neighboring property that overhang the project site) and street trees 
within 30-feet of the project site. 

b. Paving, concrete, trenching or grade change located within the tree 
protection zone. 

c. Existing and proposed utility pathways. 
d. Surface and subsurface drainage and aeration systems to be used. 
e. Walls, tree wells, retaining walls and grade change barriers, both 

temporary and permanent. 
f. Landscaping, irrigation and lighting within dripline of trees, including all 

lines, valves, etc. 
g. Location of other landscaping and significant features. 
h. All of the final approved site plan sheets shall reference tree protection 

instructions  
 

50. Soil Compaction means the compression of soil particles that may result from the 
movement of heavy machinery and trucks, storage of construction materials, 
structures, paving, etc. within the tree protection zone. Soil compaction can result in 
atrophy of roots and potential death of the tree, with symptoms often taking 3 to 
10-years to manifest. 

 



City of St. Helena  Draft 
Tree Management Guide  April 23, 2008 

Page 13 of 36 

51. Soil Fracturing means the loosening of hard or compacted soil around a tree by 
means of a pneumatic soil probe (Gro-gun) that delivers sudden bursts of air to 
crack, loosen or expand the soil to improve the root growing environment.  

 
52. Solar collector means a fixed device or structure, or a part of a device or structure, 

which is used primarily to transform solar energy into thermal, chemical or 
electrical energy, and used as part of a system which makes use of solar energy for 
any or all of the following purposes: a) water heating; b) space heating or cooling; 
and c) power generation. 

 
53. Street means land which has been dedicated, condemned or legally established by 

use for a public thoroughfare, whether paved or unpaved in whole or in part, 
except state highways and freeways. "Street" includes all thoroughfares whether 
designated by that name or some other, such as avenue, court, way, boulevard or 
road. 

 
54. Street line means the property line marking the boundary between private 

property and a city street or right-of-way. 
 

55. Street Tree means any publicly owned tree, shrub or plant growing within the 
street right-of-way, outside of private property. In some cases, property lines lie 
several feet behind the sidewalks. A permit from the Public Works Department is 
required prior to any work on or around these trees. Check with the Public Works 
Department to verify prior to any work near a street tree. 

 
56. Target is a term used to include people, vehicles, structures or something subject 

to damage by a tree. 
 

a. Note: A tree may not be a hazard if a “target” is absent within the falling 
distance of a tree or its parts (e.g. a defective tree in a non-populated area 
away from pathways may not be considered a hazard. 

 
57. Topping means the practice of cutting back large-diameter branches or truncating 

the main stem. 
 
58. Tree Appraisal means a method of determining the monetary value of a tree as it 

relates to the real estate value of the property, neighborhood or community. When 
required, a certified arborist determines the appraisal by adjusting a tree’s basic 
value by its condition, location and species using the most recent edition of the 
Guide for Plant Appraisal, published by the Council of Tree and Landscape 
Appraisers. 

 
59. Tree Protection and Preservation Plan means a plan prepared by a certified arborist 

that outlines measures to protect and preserve trees on a project. This plan shall 
include requirements for preconstruction treatments being demolition and/or 
construction; establish a tree protection zone for each tree; tree monitoring and 
inspection schedule; and provide for continued maintenance of those trees after 
construction according to the requirements in the Manual. 

 
60. Tree Protection Zone or (TPZ) means, unless otherwise specified by a project 

arborist or City Arborist, the area of temporary fenced tree enclosure. Within the 
TPZ, roots that are critical for tree survival are typically found in the upper three 
foot soil horizon, and may extend beyond the dripline area. Protecting the roots in 
the TPZ is necessary to ensure the tree’s survival. The TPZ is a restricted activity 
zone where no soil disturbance is permitted, unless otherwise approved. TPZ must 



City of St. Helena  Draft 
Tree Management Guide  April 23, 2008 

Page 14 of 36 

be identified for each tree and shown on al applicable improvement plans for a 
development project.  

a. Determining the TPZ. Unless otherwise specified, the approved minimum 
TPZ shall be formulated in the following way: the TPZ radius shall be 10 
times the DBH of the trunk. For example: a 2-foot DBH = a 20-foot radius 
from the perimeter of the trunk—or a 40-foot TPZ. The City Arborist 
retains discretionary right to extend or modify the TPZ at any time. 

 
61. Tree Report means a report submitted to the City for review that is prepared by a 

certified arborist retained by the property owner or agent. 
a. Tree Survey Report. In the case of a discretionary development approval, a 

tree survey report is required to provide information about all trees on the 
site including” inventory of all trees, location, species, size, condition, 
maintenance needs, potential impacts of disturbance, recommended 
mitigation measures, tree appraisal value, etc. 

b. Letter Report. A ‘letter report’ shall provide a brief description of the tree 
information to determine whether or not a tree is dead, hazardous or 
constitutes a public nuisance as defined in St. Helen Municipal Code. 

 
62. Tree Technical Manual is this document. 

 
63. Trenching means any excavation to provide irrigation, install foundations, utility 

lines, services, pipe, drainage or other property improvements below grade. 
Trenching within the TPZ is injurious to roots and tree health and is prohibited, 
unless approved. If trenching is approved within the TPZ, it must be in 
accordance with instructions and table outlined in this Manual. 

 
64. Verification of Tree Protection means the project arborist shall verify, in writing, 

that all pre-construction conditions have been met (tree fencing, erosion control, 
pruning, etc.) and are in place. An initial inspection of protective fencing and 
written verification must be submitted to the City Arborist prior to demolition, 
grading or building permit issuance. 

 
65. Vertical Mulching means augering, hydraulic or air excavation or vertical holes 

within a tree’s root zone to loosen and aerate the soil, typically to mitigate 
compacted soil. Holes are typically penetrated 4- to 6-feet o center, 2- to 3-feet 
deep, 2- to 6-inches in diameter and backfilled with either perlite, vermiculite, peat 
moss or a mixture thereof. 

 
66. WCSIA means the Western Chapter of the International Society of Arboriculture. 



City of St. Helena  Draft 
Tree Management Guide  April 23, 2008 

Page 15 of 36 

Section 3 
PROTECTION OF TREES DURING CONSTRUCTION 

 
SECTION 3.00 
 
INTRODUCTION 
The objective of this section is to reduce the negative impacts of construction on trees to a less than significant 
level. Trees vary in their ability to adapt to altered growing conditions. Mature trees have established stable 
biological systems in the preexisting physical environment. Disruption of this environment by construction 
activities interrupts the tree’s physiological processes causing depletion of energy reserves and a decline in 
vigor, often resulting in the tree’s death. Typically, this reaction may develop from one to twelve years or more 
after disruption. The tree protection regulations are intended to guide a construction project to ensure that 
appropriate practices will be implemented in the field to eliminate undesirable consequences that may result 
from uninformed or careless acts, and preserve both trees and property values. 
 
Typical negative impacts that may occur during construction include: 
 

 mechanical injury to roots, trunk or branches 
 compaction of soil, which degrades the functioning roots and inhibits the development of new ones and 

restricts drainage, which desiccates roots and enables water mold fungi to develop changes in existing 
grade which can cut or suffocate roots 

 alteration of the water table - either raising or lowering 
 microclimate change, exposing sheltered trees to sun or wind 
 sterile soil conditions, associated with stripping off topsoil. 

 
 
3.10 TREE PROTECTION AND PRESERVATION PLAN 
Prior to commencement of a development project, a property owner shall prepare a Tree Protection Plan for any 
work associated with tentative/final maps, grading permits, building permits, variances, projects requiring design 
review, use permits, or encroachment permits.  
 
Note: Where trees are not impacted by the project, the Director of Public Works or his/her designee may waive 
the TPP requirement. 
**Projects protecting only street trees with fencing are exempt from preparing a Tree Protection and 
Preservation Plan. 
 
The Tree Protection Plan will be prepared by a certified arborist or landscape architect to assess impacts to trees; 
recommend mitigation to reduce impacts to a less than significant level and identify construction guidelines to 
be followed through all phases of a construction project.  
 
 
3.15 PRE-CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS 
The following six steps shall be incorporated within the Tree Protection and Preservation 
Plan prior to building permit issuance. 
 
A. Site Plan 
All improvement plans shall include the following information: 

 Proposed and present grading and drainage characteristics of the project as it relates to existing and 
proposed trees 

 Accurate trunk locations and the ‘dripline’ of all trees or groups of trees to be preserved within the 
development area. Species, state of health and estimated crown diameter must also be noted.  

 Size and species of mitigated trees to replace trees proposed for removal 
In addition, for Protected Trees the plans shall clearly indicate the tree protection zone to be enclosed with the 
specified tree fencing as a bold dashed line. 
B. In-Progress Protection Measures 
Measures to ensure the survival of remaining trees throughout the entire construction process including measures 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City of St. Helena  Draft 
Tree Management Guide  April 23, 2008 

Page 16 of 36 

to alleviate drought stress, dust accumulation, soil compaction for trees to be retained must be submitted and 
approved by the Public Works Department and noted on all field sets of construction plans. 
C. Contact Information 
The City must be provided the contact information for the project arborist (if required) and job superintendent. 
Contact information should include: name, mailing address, telephone and facsimile numbers and email address 
(if available). 
D. Verification of tree protection 
The project arborist or contractor shall verify, in writing, that all preconstruction conditions have been met (tree 
fencing, erosion control, pruning, etc.) and is in place. Written verification must be submitted to and approved 
by the Department of Public Works prior to demolition, grading or building permit issuance. 
 
Protective Tree Fencing for Protected Trees 
Fenced enclosures shall be erected around trees to be protected to achieve three primary goals, (1) to keep the 
foliage crowns and branching structure clear from contact by equipment, materials and activities; (2) to preserve 
roots and soil conditions in an intact and non-compacted state 
and; (3) to identify the dripline of a tree in which no soil disturbance is permitted and activities are restricted, 
unless otherwise approved. 
 
Size and type of fence 
All trees to be preserved shall be protected with six (6’) foot high chain link fences. Fences are to be mounted on 
two inch diameter galvanized iron posts, driven into the ground to a depth of at least 2-feet at no more than 10-
foot spacing. This detail shall appear on grading, demolition and improvement plans. 
 
Area to be fenced 
 
• Type I Tree Protection 
The fences shall enclose the entire area under the canopy dripline of the tree(s) to be saved throughout the life 
of the project, or until final improvement work within the area is required, typically near the end of the project  
 

 
 
Parking Areas:  
If the fencing must be located on paving or sidewalk that will not be demolished, the posts may be supported by 
an appropriate grade level concrete base. 
 
• Type II Tree Protection 
For trees situated within a narrow planting strip, only the planting strip shall be enclosed with the required 
chain link protective fencing in order to keep the sidewalk and street open for public use. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City of St. Helena  Draft 
Tree Management Guide  April 23, 2008 

Page 17 of 36 

 
 
 
• Type III Tree Protection 
Trees situated in a small tree well or sidewalk planter pit, shall be wrapped with 2-inches of orange plastic 
fencing as padding from the ground to the first branch with 2-inch thick wooden slats bound securely on the 
outside. During installation of the wood slats, caution shall be used to avoid damaging any bark or branches. 
Major scaffold limbs may also require plastic fencing as 
directed by the City Arborist or authorized City staff.  
 

     
 
Duration 
Tree fencing shall be erected before demolition, grading or construction begins and remain in place until final 
inspection of the project permit, except for work specifically required in the approved plans in which case the 
project arborist or must be consulted. 
 
‘Warning’ Sign 
A warning sign shall be prominently displayed on each fence. The sign shall be a minimum of 8.5 x 11-inches 
and clearly state: WARNING - Tree Protection Zone - This fence shall not be removed and is subject to a 
penalty according to SHMC Section 12.24.200.  

 
 
E. Tree Protection Zone or (TPZ) 
Each tree to be retained shall have a designated TPZ identifying the area sufficiently large enough to protect the 
tree and roots from disturbance. Improvements or activities such as paving, utility and irrigation trenching and 
other ancillary activities shall occur outside the TPZ, unless authorized by the Project Arborist or by project 
approval. Unless otherwise specified, the protective fencing shall serve as the TPZ. 
 
1. Activities prohibited within the TPZ include: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City of St. Helena  Draft 
Tree Management Guide  April 23, 2008 

Page 18 of 36 

 Storage or parking vehicles, building materials, refuse, excavated spoils or dumping of poisonous 
materials on or around trees and roots. Poisonous materials include, but are not limited to, paint, 
petroleum products, concrete or stucco mix, dirty water or any other material which may be deleterious 
to tree health. 

 The use of tree trunks as a winch support, anchorage, as a temporary power pole, sign posts or other 
similar function. 

 Cutting of tree roots by utility trenching, foundation digging, placement of curbs and trenches and other 
miscellaneous excavation without prior approval of the Project Arborist. 

 Soil disturbance or grade change  
 Drainage changes 

 
2. Activities permitted or required within the TPZ include: 

 Mulching. During construction, wood chips may be spread within the TPZ to a 4-to 6-inch 
depth, leaving the trunk clear of mulch to help inadvertent compaction and moisture loss from 
occurring. The mulch may be removed if improvements or other landscaping is required. 
Mulch material shall be 2-inch unpainted, untreated wood chip mulch or approved equal. 

 Root Buffer. When areas under the tree canopy cannot be fenced, a temporary buffer is 
required and shall cover the root zone and remain in place at the specified thickness until final 
grading stage  

 Irrigation, aeration, fertilizing or other beneficial practices that have been specifically 
approved for use within the TPZ. 

 
F. Tree Pruning, Surgery and Removal 
Prior to construction, various trees may require that branches be pruned clear from structures, activities, building 
encroachment or may need to be strengthened by means of mechanical support or surgery. The most compelling 
reason to prune is to develop a strong, safe framework and tree structure. Such pruning, surgery or the removal 
of trees shall adhere to the following standards: 
 
1. Pruning limitations: 
Minimum Pruning: If the project arborist recommends that trees be pruned, and the type of pruning is left 
unspecified, the standard pruning shall consist of ‘crown cleaning’ as defined by ISA Pruning Guidelines. Trees 
shall be pruned to reduce hazards and develop a strong, safe framework. 
 
Maximum Pruning: Maximum pruning should only occur in the rarest situation approved by the Project Arborist 
or authorized City staff. No more than one-fourth (25 percent) of the functioning leaf and stem area may be 
removed within one calendar year of any protected tree, or removal of foliage so as to cause the unbalancing of 
the tree. It must be recognized that trees are individual in form and structure, and that pruning needs may not 
always fit strict rules. The project arborist shall assume all responsibility for special pruning practices that vary 
from the standards outlined in this manual. 
 
Tree Workers. Pruning shall not be attempted by construction or contractor personnel, but shall be performed by 
a qualified tree care specialist or certified tree worker. 
 
2. Surgery.  
Prior to construction, if it is necessary to promote health and prolong useful life or the structural characteristics, 
then trees shall be provided the appropriate treatments (e.g. cavity screening, bark tracing, wound treatment, 
cables, rods or pole supports) as specified by the project arborist. 
 
3. Tree Removal Procedure.  
When Protected Trees are removed and adjacent trees that are to be preserved (as shown on the approved site 
plans) must be protected, then the following tree removal practices apply: 
 
 
Tree Removal 
Removal of trees that extend into the branches or roots of Protected Trees shall not be attempted by demolition 
or construction personnel, grading or other heavy equipment. A certified arborist or tree worker shall remove the 
tree carefully in a manner that causes no damage above or below ground to trees that remain. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City of St. Helena  Draft 
Tree Management Guide  April 23, 2008 

Page 19 of 36 

Stump Removal 
Before performing stump extraction, the developer shall first consider whether or not roots may be entangled 
with trees that are to remain. If so, these stumps shall have their roots severed before extracting the stump. 
Removal shall include the grinding of stump and roots to a minimum depth of 24-inches but expose soil beneath 
stump to provide drainage. In sidewalk or small planter areas to be replanted with a new tree, the entire stump 
shall be removed and the planting pit dug to a depth of 30-inches. If dug below 30-inches, compact the backfill 
to prevent settling. Large surface roots three feet from the outside circumference shall be removed, including the 
spoils and backfilled with topsoil to grade, and the area tamped to settle the soil.  
 
3.20 ACTIVITIES DURING CONSTRUCTION & DEMOLITION NEAR TREES 
Soil disturbance or other injurious and detrimental activity within the Tree Protection Zone (TPZ) is prohibited 
unless approved by the City. If an injurious event inadvertently occurs, or soil disturbance has been specifically 
conditioned for project approval, then the following mitigation is required: 
 
A. Grading Limitations within the Tree Protection Zone 

 Grade changes outside of the TPZ shall not significantly alter drainage to the tree. 
 Grade changes within the TPZ are not permitted. 
 Grade changes under specifically approved circumstances shall not allow more than 6-inches of fill soil 

added or allow more than 4-inches of existing soil to be removed from natural grade unless mitigated. 
 Grade fills over 6-inches or impervious overlay shall incorporate an approved permanent aeration 

system, permeable material or other approved mitigation. 
 Grade cuts exceeding 4-inches shall incorporate an appropriate transition. 

B. Trenching, Excavation and Equipment Use 
Trenching, excavation or boring activity within the TPZ is restricted to the following activities, conditions and 
requirements if approved by the City. Mitigating measures shall include prior notification to and direct 
supervision by the project arborist. 
1. Notification.  
Contractor shall notify the project arborist a minimum of 24 hours in advance of the activity in the TPZ. 
2. Root Severance.  
Roots that are encountered shall be cut to sound wood and repaired. Roots 2- inches and greater must remain 
injury free. 
3. Excavation.  
Any approved excavation, demolition or extraction of material shall be performed with equipment sitting outside 
the TPZ. Methods permitted are by hand digging, hydraulic or pneumatic air excavation technology. Avoid 
excavation within the TPZ during hot, dry weather. 
If excavation or trenching for drainage, utilities, irrigation lines, etc., it is the duty of the contractor to tunnel 
under any roots 2-inches in diameter and greater. Prior to excavation for foundation/footings/walls, grading or 
trenching within the TPZ, roots shall first be severed cleanly 1- foot outside the TPZ and to the depth of the 
future excavation. 
The trench must then be hand dug and roots pruned with a saw, sawzall, narrow trencher with sharp blades or 
other approved root pruning equipment. 
4. Heavy Equipment.  
Use of backhoes, steel tread tractors or any heavy vehicles within the TPZ is prohibited unless approved by the 
City. If allowed, a protective root buffer is required. The protective buffer shall consist of a base course of tree 
chips spread over the root area to a minimum of 6-inch depth, layered by 3/4-inch quarry gravel to stabilize 3/4-
inch plywood on top. This buffer within the TPZ shall be maintained throughout the entire construction process. 
5. Structural design.  
If injurious activity or interference with roots greater than 2-inches will occur within the TPZ, plans shall specify 
a design of special foundation, footing, walls, concrete slab or pavement designs subject to City Arborist 
approval. Discontinuous foundations such as concrete pier and structural grade beam must maintain natural 
grade (not to exceed a 4-inch cut), to minimize root loss and allow the tree to use the existing soil. 
 
 
 
 
Insert 2.20-1 image 
Insert 2.20-2 image 
Insert 2.20-3 image 

 
 
 



City of St. Helena  Draft 
Tree Management Guide  April 23, 2008 

Page 20 of 36 

 
Basement excavations shall be designed outside the TPZ of all notes: protected and designated trees (see 
Excavation, Section 2.20-3) and shall not be harmful to other mature or neighboring property trees. 
 
C. Tunneling & Directional Drilling 
If trenching or pipe installation has been approved within the TPZ, then the trench shall be either cut by hand, 
air-spade, hydraulic vac-on excavation or, by mechanically boring the tunnel under the roots with a horizontal 
directional drill and hydraulic or pneumatic air excavation technology. In all cases, install the utility pipe 
immediately, backfill with soil and soak within the same day.  
 
 
3.25 DAMAGE TO TREES 
A. Reporting 
Any damage or injury to trees shall be reported within 24-hours to the project arborist, job superintendent, and 
City so that mitigation can take place. All mechanical or chemical injury to branches, trunk or to roots over 2-
inches in diameter shall be reported in the quarterly inspection report.  
In the event of injury, the following mitigation and damage control measures shall apply: 
1. Root injury: If trenches are cut and tree roots 2-inches or larger are encountered they must be cleanly cut back 
to a sound wood lateral root. The end of the root shall be covered with either a plastic bag and secured with tape 
or rubber band, or be coated with latex paint. All exposed root areas within the TPZ shall be backfilled or 
covered within one hour. Exposed roots may be kept from drying out by temporarily covering the roots and 
draping layered burlap or carpeting over the upper 3-feet of trench walls. The materials must be kept wet until 
backfilled to reduce evaporation from the trench walls.  
2. Bark or trunk wounding: Current bark tracing and treatment methods shall be performed by a qualified tree 
care specialist within two days.  
3. Scaffold branch or leaf canopy injury: Remove broken or torn branches back to an appropriate branch capable 
of resuming terminal growth within five days. If leaves are heat scorched from equipment exhaust pipes, consult 
the project arborist within 24 hours. 
 
B. Penalty for damage to street trees 
In the event that street trees or their roots have been damaged, the contractor or property owner shall be subject 
to the penalty rate of $100.00 per inch of damage (subject to change per City Council resolution). Measurement 
of the damage shall be the width of the wound measured across the grain at the widest point. Penalty fee shall be 
paid to the City and deposited to the general fund as required. 
 
3.30 INSPECTION SCHEDULE 
The project arborist or Landscape Architect retained by the applicant shall conduct the following required 
inspections of construction sites containing protected and designated trees. Inspections shall verify that the type 
of tree protection and/or plantings is consistent with the standards outlined within this Manual and Conditions of 
Approval for discretionary projects. For each required inspection or meeting, a written summary of the changing 
tree related conditions, actions taken, and condition of trees shall be provided to the City. Inspection Reports 
shall be faxed to the Department of Public Works at (707) 967-2806. 

 
Inspection Schedule 

 
A. Quarterly Inspections. The project arborist shall perform quarterly inspections to monitor changing conditions 
and tree health. The City shall be in receipt of an inspection summary during the first week of each quarter or, 
immediately if there are any changes to the approved plans or protection measures. Inspections may be required 
more often if deemed necessary by City staff. 
B. Special activity within the Tree Protection Zone. Work in this area (TPZ) requires the direct onsite 
supervision of the project arborist. 
C. Project Arborist/Landscape Architect Inspection. For discretionary development projects, prior to temporary 
or final occupancy the applicant or contractor shall call for the Project Arborist/Landscape Architect to perform 
an on site inspection of all plant stock, quality of the materials and planting and that the irrigation is functioning 
consistent with the approved construction plans. The City shall be in receipt of written verification of the Project 
Arborist/Landscape Architect approval prior to scheduling the final inspection, unless otherwise approved. 
 
3.40 PAVEMENT AND HARDSCAPE CONFLICTS WITH TREE ROOTS 



City of St. Helena  Draft 
Tree Management Guide  April 23, 2008 

Page 21 of 36 

Conflicts may occur when tree roots grow adjacent to paving, foundations, sidewalks or curbs (hardscape). 
Improper or careless extraction of  these elements can cause severe injury to the roots and instability or even 
death of the trees. 
 
A. Removal and Replacement of Pavement or Sidewalk:  
Removal of existing pavement over tree roots shall include the following precautions: Break hardscape into 
manageable pieces with a jackhammer or pick and hand load the pieces onto a loader. The loader must remain 
on undisturbed pavement or off exposed roots. Do not remove base rock that has been exploited by established 
absorbing roots. Apply untreated wood chips over the exposed area within one hour, then wet the chips and base 
rock and keep moist until overlay surface is applied. 
Replacement of pavement or sidewalk: An alternative to the severance of roots greater than 2- inches in diameter 
should be considered before cutting roots.  
 
Note: Any work in the right-of-way requires an encroachment permit from Public Works Department. 
 
B. Alternative methods to prevent root cutting: 
The following remedies should be considered before cutting tree roots that may result in tree instability or 
decline: 

 Grinding a raised sidewalk edge. 
 Ramping the walking surface over the roots or lifted slab with pliable paving and/or pavers. 
 Routing the sidewalk around the tree roots. 
 Install flexible paving or rubberized sections. 
 On private property, new sidewalk or driveway design should consider alternatives to conventional 

pavement and sidewalk materials. Substitute permeable materials for typical asphalt or concrete 
overlay, sub-base or footings to consider are: permeable 
paving materials (such as ECO-Stone or RIMA pavers), interlocking pavers, flexible paving, wooden 
walkways, porches elevated on posts and brick or flagstone walkways on sand foundations. 

 
C. Avoiding Conflict 
Conflicts and associated costs can be avoided or reduced by the following 
planting practices: 
 

 Plant deep rooted trees that are proven to be non-invasive. 
 Over soil that shrinks and swells, install a sidewalk with higher strength that has wire mesh and/or 

expansion slip joint dowel reinforcement. 
 Follow soil loosening planting techniques to promote deep rooting. 
 Install root barrier only along the hardscape area of the tree (but allow roots to use open lawn or planter 

strip areas). Dedicate at least 10-linear feet of planting space for the growth of each tree. 
 
D. Alternative Base Course Materials 

When designing hardscape areas near trees, the project architect or engineer should consider the use of 
recommended base course material such as an engineered structural soil mix. Structural soil mix will allow a 
long term cost effective tree and infrastructure compatibility that is particularly suited for the following types 
development projects: repair or replacement of sidewalk greater than 40-feet in length; subdivisions with new 
street tree plantings; planting areas that are designed over structures or parking garages; confined parking lot 

medians and islands or other specialized conditions as warranted. 
 

- END OF SECTION - 
 



City of St. Helena  Draft 
Tree Management Guide  April 23, 2008 

Page 22 of 36 

Section 4 
REMOVAL, REPLACEMENT, PLANTING & TREE 

WORK OF PROTECTED TREES 
 

Section 4.00 
 
INTRODUCTION 
A Protected Tree may not be removed without City review and approval, except in certain emergencies. The 
purpose of City review is to verify that the removal is allowed under City law, and to prevent unnecessary tree 
removal. In some cases, a removed tree must be replaced by the property owner or, in the case of street trees, 
developer. This section describes the type and size of tree required, and the planting techniques to be used. It 
also describes how to determine the replacement value of a tree that cannot be replaced in its original location, 
and the circumstances in which the City may require a security deposit to assure the survival of trees during 
development projects. 
 
4.05 TREE REMOVAL 
A. Allowable Removal 
A written permit is required to remove a Protected Tree, except in emergency situations. In general, removal of 
a Protected Tree is allowed if: 
 

 A Protected Tree is determined to be dead, hazardous (see Hazardous trees, Section 4.0), a detriment 
to or crowding an adjacent protected tree, or a Public Nuisance (see Section 1.00). 

 A Protected Tree trunk is touching or the basal flare is under the building footprint of an existing 
building (for example, uplifting foundation, contact or damage to eves, gutter, etc.). 

 On projects other than a single family residence, a Protected Tree if it reduces the otherwise-
permissible Buildable Area by more than 25%. 

 In the case of Street Trees, Public Works issues a written approval. 
 
B. Permit Application 
Tree Removal Applications are available at the City of St. Helena, 1480 Main Street, St. Helena, CA 94574, 
707-968-2658. It is also available under “Forms & Documents” on the City’s website at: 
www.sthelenacity.com. The following is a checklist of items necessary for City review for tree removal.  
 
Tree Removal Checklist 

 Completed City of St. Helena Tree Removal Application 
 Payment of $XXX.XX review process fee  

 
C.  Tree Work, Tree Planting Permits 
Tree work on a protected tree or the proposal to plant a tree within the public right of way (street tree) requires 
a permit from the Department of Public Works.  Only tree plantings from the St. Helena Master Street Tree 
List will be considered for approval. Permit cost is $ XXX.XX for staff review. 
 
All permits are available at City Hall or on the City’s website at: 
www.sthelenacity.com 
 
4.10 WHEN TREE REPLACEMENT IS REQUIRED 
Certain conditions determine whether or not a protected tree must be replaced. In summary, they are: 
A. Protected Trees 
If the City authorizes removal of a protected tree because it is dead, dangerous, or a nuisance, no tree 
replacement is required. In all other cases, the tree must be replaced. 
B. Street Trees 
Require replacement with an appropriate tree from the St. Helena Master Street Tree List. 
C. Heritage Trees 
In order to remove a Heritage Tree;  the St. Helena City Council must remove the designation of Heritage Tree 
status or deem the tree a hazard to public safety. 

 



City of St. Helena  Draft 
Tree Management Guide  April 23, 2008 

Page 23 of 36 

 
4.15 ALTERNATIVES WHEN TREES CANNOT BE REPLACED ON SITE 
In some circumstances, crowding or other physical constraints make it impossible or undesirable to replace a 
tree of equal value in the same place. 
 
Once the value of the tree has been determined, that sum of money shall be used in the following order of 
preference, as approved by the Director: (1) to provide additional trees elsewhere on the site; (2) to add or 
replace street trees or other public landscaping in the vicinity, or (3) to add trees or other landscaping to other 
City property. 
 
4.20 TREE CANOPY REPLACEMENT STANDARD 
FOR ONSITE TREE REPLACEMENT 
When a Protected Tree is to be replaced on site, the following standards apply. 
A. Species 
The replacement trees shall be the same species unless the Director determines that another species would be 
more suitable for the location. Factors to be considered include the long term health of the tree in the location 
and its compatibility with the adjacent uses as well as design considerations. 
B. Location 
The location of the replacement tree on site shall be approved by the Director. If it is not possible or desirable 
to replace the tree on site, Section 3.15 shall apply. 
C. Size and Number 
Often it is not possible to replace a large, older tree with a single equivalent tree. In such cases, the following 
tree canopy replacement ratio shall be used: 
 
 
 

Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 
Canopy of the 
Removed Tree 

Replacement 
Trees 

Alternative Tree 

4’ – 9’ Two 15 gallon trees One 24” box tree 
10’ – 27’ Three 15 gallon trees Two 24” box tree 
28’ – 40’ Four 15 gallon trees Three 24” box trees 
40’ – 56’ Six 15 gallon trees Four 24” box trees 
56’ – 60’ Seven 15 gallon trees Five 24” box trees 

60’ + Consult with City Arborist Consult with City Arborist 
 
How to use the Tree Canopy Replacement Table. 
Column 1. Determine the leaf canopy of the removed tree by measuring the distance across the canopy at the 
widest point and narrowest point. Add half of the difference between the two to the narrowest measurement for 
the average canopy. The leaf canopy diameter of the tree  (this information is typically supplied within the 
arborist report) is used to determine number and size of replacement trees in Column 2. 
 
Column 2.  
Determine the number of replacement trees. The planting of new trees should equal the leaf canopy of the 
removed tree within a period of ten years. The minimum replacement for removal of any Protected Tree shall 
be two 15 gallon trees. 
 
Column 3. Alternative size of trees may be desired. The property owner shall have the option to plant an 
alternative size tree to accommodate site specific landscape needs or constraints, such as space, design or soil 
volume limitations. Any tree proposal shall come from the St. Helena Master Street Tree List. 
 
4.25 TREE VALUE REPLACEMENT STANDARD  
When the value of a tree needs to be determined for establishing the amount of security required, or for any 
other purpose, the value shall be determined by using the most recent edition of the Guide for Plant Appraisal 
published by the Council of Tree and Landscape Appraisers.  
 
4.26 SECURITY DEPOSITS 
As a condition of a development approval, the Director may require that the developer post security of between 



City of St. Helena  Draft 
Tree Management Guide  April 23, 2008 

Page 24 of 36 

25% and 100% of the value of the trees to be preserved. The security may be a cash deposit, letter of credit, or 
surety bond and shall be filed with the Finance Department. It shall be in a form satisfactory to the City 
Attorney.  
The security shall be posted before issuance of any grading or building permits. The guarantee period shall be 
specified; in general, it shall be at least two years after expected completion of construction. If the trees fail to 
survive, the developer shall replace them; if the developer fails to do so, the City may use the security to 
provide off site trees and/or landscaping as described in Section 4.15. 
 
4.30 TREE PLANTING SPECIFICATIONS 
Planting specifications apply for trees are: 1) planted as a replacement for a Protected Tree, 2) to be planted as 
a street tree within the City right-of-way or other public land; or 3) planted as part of a landscape plan subject 
to non-residential development approval. Using the following specifications will result in consistent city-wide 
plantings, and superior tree growth and vitality. To achieve this, the landscape architect shall incorporate these 
items into their specifications. 
 
4.35 PLANTING STOCK AND MATERIALS 
A. Quality 
It is the contractor’s responsibility to supply stock that meets ANSI 760.1-1996 and City of St. Helena Tree 
Technical Manual Standards. 
 
All plants and trees installed within the City of St. Helena shall conform to American Association of Standards, 
ANSI Z60.1, Specifications for Acceptance of Nursery Trees at the Time of Delivery, in all ways. 
 

o Plants shall be sound, healthy, vigorous, and free of plant disease and insect pests and their eggs 
o Container stock shall be grown for at least 8-months in containers in which delivered and shall not be 

root bound or have girdling roots. 
o Trees shall not have been topped or headed and have a strong central leader 
o Inspection shall occur after delivery of stock to the project site 
o Plants and trees with broken tops, branches or injured trunks shall be rejected 
o All plants shall comply with any and all applicable regulations from the Napa County Agricultural 

Commissioner’s Office 
 
B. Miscellaneous Materials 
The following materials shall be used unless otherwise specified: 
 

o Tree stakes. Support stakes shall be treated 2-inch diameter Lodgepole Pine, two stakes per tree or 
approved equivalent. No cross brace shall be used. After installation, stakes shall be trimmed so that 
the branches clear the top of the stake.  

o Tree Ties. ‘V.I.T’ Tree Supports (recommended) or equivalent, twist brace, fabric-reinforced rubber 
(3/8-inch minimum), or equivalent approved by the City of St. Helena shall be used and installed in a 
figure eight fashion to support the tree to the stakes. 

o Mulch. Screened untreated wood chips 1/2- to 1-inch in size, spread to a 2-inch depth out to the edge 
of the root ball. The mulch should be kept at least two inches away from the trunk and shall be applied 
to each tree (see Mulching, Section 3.45-G). 

o Mower guards. For trees in turf areas requiring regular mowing, the tree stem shall be protected with 
Tree Guard or equivalent. 

 
4.40 PLANTING SITE PREPARATION 
A. Soil Preparation and Conditioning 
All debris, wood chips, pavement, concrete and rocks over 2- inches in diameter shall be removed from the 
planting pit to a minimum of 24-inch depth, unless specified otherwise. 
 
B. Planter Pit 
Trees in a confined planter pit or sidewalk area: The planting hole shall be excavated to at least twice as wide 
and twice as deep as the rootball of the tree. Scarify the sides of the pit. Soil beneath the rootball shall be 
compacted to prevent settling. The height of the container root ball should be 1-2-inches higher than grade 
level, except when structural urban tree soil mix is used, in which case the tree may be planted at level grade. 
 



City of St. Helena  Draft 
Tree Management Guide  April 23, 2008 

Page 25 of 36 

4.45 PLANTING THE TREE 
A. Perform percolation test 
If the soil is dry, add a few inches of water in the hole. Let it drain before planting the tree. 
 
B. Depth 
To check the proper depth of the rootball, place the tree in the hole and lay a pole or shovel across the original 
grade - the top of the root ball should be 1to 2-inches higher (see notes on depth, Section 3.40 B). 
 
C. Container and Roots 
Remove tree from the container and trim the root ball in the following way: 
* Thick circling roots: straighten and/or cut cleanly 
* Thin roots: make three to four vertical cuts 1/2-inch deep around root ball, spread the bottom out if necessary 
 
D. Placing the Tree 
Locate the tree in the hole, and rotate the tree to direct the main branches away from the street side, if possible. 
 
E. Filling the Hole 
Fill the hole halfway up with original soil, and gently tamp out air pockets with a pole or shovel handle. Fill 
the rest of the hole to grade, water the fill soil, and let drain. 
 
F. Staking 
Place the stakes at the edge of the root ball (drive them 2-feet into undisturbed ground), and avoid contact with 
the branches. If in a windy area, set the stakes in a plane at right angles to the wind. Remove the nursery stake. 
Loosely place two ties in a figure eight around the trunk, as low as needed to hold the tree upright and nail to 
the stake. Stakes shall be trimmed so that the branches clear the top of the stake. Do not install a cross-brace. 
 
G. Berm, Mulch and Water  
In non-turf areas, form a soil berm 3 to 4-inches high at the outermost edge of the root ball. Place 1 to 2-inches 
of mulch or bark over root ball and berm, keeping the mulch away from the trunk a minimum of 2-inches. Fill 
the berm with water to capacity. 
 
4.50 PLANTING IN DIFFICULT SOIL CONDITIONS 
A. Turf Areas 
In turf areas that receive regular watering, the watering berm may be eliminated. The turf shall be maintained a 
minimum of one foot from the new tree stem, and mulch placed on top of the rootball. The mulch shall not be 
touching the tree stem. In turf areas, install tree guard (see Mower Guards Section 3.35 B). 
 
B. Alternate Specifications 
Occasionally, tree planting must occur in poor or difficult soil where standard planting techniques will result in 
poor-to-average performance or mortality (such as unique or unusual regional geology, slope, soil volume, 
restrictive physical or chemical properties, poor drainage, etc.). In this case, the responsible party must 
investigate alternative solutions to enable long term tree growth. Alternative planting specifications or plans 
that vary from the native or typical soil conditions shall be submitted to the City Arborist for approval prior to 
installation. 
 
* Alternative or specified soils, such as engineered, amended or structural urban tree soil mix, including 
written specifications and physical samples, shall be submitted for approval from the Department of Public 
Works City Arborist or authorized City staff. 
 

- END OF SECTION - 
 



City of St. Helena  Draft 
Tree Management Guide  April 23, 2008 

Page 26 of 36 

 

Section 5 
HAZARDOUS TREES 

 
SECTION 5.00  
 
INTRODUCTION 
Property owners are responsible for the trees on their own property. The City does not require advance 
permission for removal of Protected trees in emergencies. However, it does require documentation of the 
problem after the fact. This is to avoid the unlawful removal of sound trees on the grounds that they are 
hazardous. If there is no immediate danger, and the structural deficiency can be corrected, it should be. If the 
City determines that there was no reasonable basis for believing there was an emergency, the property owner 
may face penalties for violating City law. The health and safety of a tree are two distinct and separate 
functional characteristics. 
A vigorous and healthy tree may not necessarily be of sound wood or structure. 
 
A. Tree Hazard Responsibility 
On private property, it is the responsibility of the property owner to mitigate or abate a known hazardous 
condition of a protected tree that may be of questionable structure or deemed as hazardous. Most tree hazards 
can be prevented with regular checkups by a tree care professional and timely maintenance action by the 
property owner. Street trees on city property that may be a public safety hazard should be reported to the City 
of St. Helena, Public Works at (707) 968-2658. 
 
B. Recognizing Tree Hazards 
Determining whether or not a tree’s defects constitute a condition that presents an imminent hazard to an area 
requires a high degree of knowledge and experience. Hazard tree assessment of a protected tree should only 
be evaluated by an arborist who is familiar with tree physiology and can interpret the external signs of 
weaknesses, who can perform internal checks if necessary and recommend mitigation. 
 
5.10 EMERGENCY REMOVAL CONDITIONS 
A. Abatement 
When a tree has partially failed or it is apparent it is about to fail and persons or property are threatened the 
tree may be removed without City review or approval. The City does not require a report before the removal 
in this instance. 
 
B. Authorization 
Authorization is subject to the standard procedure outlined in Removal of Protected Trees, Section 3.05. 
 
5.20 CRITERIA USED BY THE CITY TO DETERMINE IF A TREE IS HAZARDOUS 
A. Definition of Hazardous 
St. Helena defines ‘Hazardous’ as: an imminent hazard or threat to the safety of persons or property. If a tree 
possesses a structural defect that may cause the tree or part of the tree to fall on someone or something of 
value, and the condition is determined to be imminent, the tree is considered hazardous. 
 
B. Authorization 
If the hazardous condition cannot be mitigated or reduced to a less than significant level then the tree shall be 
authorized by the City and removed by the property owner to abate the condition. 
 
5.25 TREE EVALUATION CHECKLIST 
This part is intended to further help the property owner understand tree defects and how they may be 
interpreted by an arborist. Many tree defects are not readily apparent because decay or structural damage may 
be internal. Also, poor tree health may not reflect poor tree structure. Hazardous trees must be carefully 
evaluated. The following checklist of criteria that is typically used by professionals may indicate potential or 
current tree hazards. The checklist is not meant to be a comprehensive guide, however, it is an outline of 
indicators that may alert a property owner to potential hazards and suggest action to avert a tree failure and 
liability. If you answer ‘yes’ to one or more of the checklist items, you should contact an arborist to discuss 

 



City of St. Helena  Draft 
Tree Management Guide  April 23, 2008 

Page 27 of 36 

how to reduce the potential hazard. 
 
A. Hazard Evaluation Questionnaire 
 
1. Target: If the tree or branch falls will it hit cars, houses, structures, power lines or people? If so, immediate 
action may be necessary. 
2. Dead Branches: Are there dead tops or branches? Is the tree dead? 
3. Cracks: Are there deep, open cracks in the trunk or branches? These are major starting points for trunk and 
branch failure. 
4. Crotch Cracks: Are there deep, open cracks below joining trunks or stems? 
5. Tree Architecture: Has the tree grown beyond its species specific shape into a hazardous form? Is the tree 
leaning? 
6. History: Has the tree recently lost large branches? 
7. Edge Tree: Were neighboring trees recently removed, leaving tall trees exposed at the edge that may be 
subject to unexpected wind dynamics and blow-over? 
8. Living Branches: Do live branches bend abruptly upward or downward where tips of large branches were 
cut off? These may pull out of trunks that are weakened by rot or cracks. Beware of large branches on rotten 
or cracked trunks. 
9. Topping: Are large branches growing rapidly from topping cuts? These sprouts have weak attachments 
and may weaken further as they grow. Is there decay below topping cuts? 
10. Storm injury: Are there broken branches, split trunks, or injured roots? Are branches close to power 
lines?  
11. Root Rot: Are there fungus fruit bodies (mushrooms) on roots or near the trunk? Were roots injured by 
construction? 
12. Rots and Cankers: Are there hollows or cankers (dead spots) in the trunk or major branches, some with 
fungus fruit bodies? 
13. Construction injury: Have roots, trunk, or branches been injured? 
Is there a new lawn or garden over injured roots? The added fertilizer may stimulate the growth of fungi that 
will rot the supporting roots while the top gets heavier. A moderate storm could cause the tree to fall. 
14. Guying of trees. Staking and guying of small to medium size trees may benefit from the additional 
support. Discretion must be exercised that the guying does not hide weaknesses, such as toppling over, that 
result from poor quality nursery stock or girdling roots. 
 
5.30 HAZARD REDUCTION AND PREVENTION 
Review the following list to reduce hazardous conditions.  
 -  Plant trees that are not problematic and that fit the site 
-  The International Society of Arboriculture (ISA) has developed a list to assist you to avoid planting 

a tree that may become a problem (see Inherent Failure Patterns for Selected Species, Appendix). 
-  A healthy, vigorous tree that receives regular care is less likely to become hazardous than one that is 

ignored. Prevention is the best solution to the tree hazard problem. 
-  The risk of a hazard tree may be reduced by removing dead and broken branches, reducing branch 

end weights, by mechanically supporting weak branches from below, or by cabling and bracing. 
 
In some cases, hazards may be removed such as by moving picnic tables or other items beneath a precarious 
tree, fencing to prevent access to such trees, or rerouting pedestrian or vehicular traffic. If there are no other 
options to abate the hazard, the tree may need to be removed. Steps outlined in the Tree Removal Procedure 
should be submitted as soon as possible for review by the City. 
The following checklist will help property owners avoid future problems: 
 

o Inspect your trees carefully at least once each season every year. Annually, have a Certified Arborist 
inspect your trees and provide you with a written report. 

o Avoid planting brittle species where falling limbs could injure people or property (see Inherent 
Failure Patterns for Selected Species, Appendix D). 

o Prune trees when they are young and regularly thereafter. 
o Use correct pruning methods, always making the pruning cut outside the branch collar. This will 

allow only the minimum of decay infection. 
o Do not allow topping. 
o Always plant the right tree in the right place. Select trees based upon their mature height and shape, 



City of St. Helena  Draft 
Tree Management Guide  April 23, 2008 

Page 28 of 36 

and make sure the species selected matches the soil and other site characteristics. For example, 
avoid planting tall-growing trees such as redwoods near power lines or too close to your house (see 
Inherent Failure Patterns for Selected Species, Appendix D). 

o Water thoroughly (generally, until saturation is reached) during dry periods, slowly applying at least 
2-inches of water per week. 

o Erect barriers around or slightly beyond the root protection zone of trees during construction. Insist 
that these root protection zones be honored by construction workers. 

o Consider cabling or bracing weak forks of branches in larger trees of high value. 
o Do not plant trees with a narrowly-forked stem v-crotch, imbedded bark or girdling root ball. 
o Where a valuable specimen tree may be suspected of developing into a hazardous tree, use 

landscaping to keep people at a safe distance. This may require techniques such as rerouting walks, 
moving patio furniture, or planting shrubs and hedges to function as barriers to keep foot traffic at a 
safe distance. 

-END OF SECTION - 
 
 
 
 



City of St. Helena  Draft 
Tree Management Guide  April 23, 2008 

Page 29 of 36 

Section 6 
TREE MAINTENANCE GUIDELINES 

 
SECTION 6.00  
 
INTRODUCTION 
This chapter establishes the minimum standard of care and maintenance of St. Helena’s Protected Trees. These 
standards apply to all persons who own or are engaged in the business of repairing, maintaining, or preserving 
these trees. The following standards of care are set forth for pruning (including utility, fire and traffic 
encroachment), planting, watering, soil and nutrient requirements, insect, disease and fruit control. Guidelines 
for selecting an arborist are also given. These standards and guidelines are based on sound arboricultural 
principles and are applicable to trees, shrubs and woody plants. 
 
SECTION 6.05 CARE OF REGULATED TREES 
All owners of Protected Trees are to follow the required maintenance standards set forth in this Manual. If 
special pruning or situations require a variance from these Standards, it is the responsibility of the project 
arborist and property owner to clarify why the changes are needed and review them with the City Arborist or 
authorized staff. 
 
SECTION 6.10 PROHIBITED ACTS 
Improper maintenance may constitute a prohibited act as defined by the St. Helena Municipal Code and a 
violation which may be subject to penalty. The following permitted and prohibited maintenance practices for 
protected trees apply. 
A. Excessive Pruning 
Except for clearance pruning of utility lines, traffic or abating a Public Nuisance, excessive pruning, shall be 
considered a prohibited act. 
B. Topping 
Topping shall be considered a prohibited act. Seek alternatives to topping.  
C. Other prohibited actions 
Taking any action foreseeably leading to the death of a tree or permanent damage to its health, including but not 
limited to excessive pruning, cutting, girdling, poisoning, over watering, unauthorized relocation or 
transportation of a tree, or trenching, excavating, altering the grade, or paving within the dripline area of a tree. 
 
5.15 STANDARDS FOR PRUNING REGULATED TREES 
The most compelling reason to prune trees is to develop a strong, safe framework. All work to be performed on 
Protected Trees shall be in accordance with the following standards. 
 
A. Specifications 
All specifications for working on protected trees shall be written and shall be administered by a qualified 
arborist, and shall be designed to promote the preservation of tree structure and health.  
 
B. Industry Standards 
All work on Protected Trees shall be in accordance with the most current edition of the following industry 
standards:(see Performance Standards. Standard Practices for Tree Care Operations - ANSI A300-1995 Appendix 
G; Safety Standards, ANSI Z133.1-1994, Appendix F; and Tree Pruning Guidelines, Appendix E). 
 
 
6.20 PRUNING MATURE TREES  
There are six types of pruning that may be required for use on mature Protected Trees (see ISA Tree Pruning 
Guidelines, Appendix E). Prior to entering the tree, the tree worker is required to be familiar with these types of 
pruning as stated in the Performance Standards, ANSI, A300-1995. ‘Species-specific’ pruning promotes the 
natural shape of the tree (i.e. excurrent, decurrent, vase-shaped, fast growing, etc.). 
 
A. Types of Pruning 
              Crown Cleaning 
              Crown Thinning 

 



City of St. Helena  Draft 
Tree Management Guide  April 23, 2008 

Page 30 of 36 

              Crown Raising 
              Crown Restoration 
              Crown Reduction 
              Utility Pruning 
 
B. Tree Injury 
Climbing and pruning practices shall not injure the tree except for the pruning cuts. 
 
C. Timing of Pruning 

 To reduce the probability of insect infestation, disease or infection, the following seasonal restrictions 
apply, except when public safety is a concern : 

 Pine (Pinus spp.) or Elm (Ulmus spp.): Do not prune May-October 
 All species: Do not prune during the flush of spring shoot growth 
 Trees with thin bark: Do not prune in summer when sun scald injury may be a factor 
 Deciduous trees (leafless in winter): Best pruned November- February 
 Hazardous trees of any species may be pruned any time of the year for abatement reasons 

 
5.25 PRUNING DISTRESSED TREES  (Recommended Practice) 
Distressed trees require as much leaf area as possible to overcome stressed conditions. To avoid additional 
injury, the following measures shall be followed for these trees. 
 
A. Injury or Disturbance 
If a tree has been damaged by injury or disturbance, delay pruning until deadwood becomes evident (typically 1-
3 years after injury). Crown cleaning is then recommended. 
B. Neglect 
Trees that have received little or no care or maintenance may need moderate crown thinning, reduction of end 
weights or entire crown restoration.  
 
6.30 PRUNING YOUNG TREES 
The average life expectancy for trees growing in harsh urban conditions is 7-10 years. By pruning trees early, it 
will improve life expectancy and is a proven, cost-effective measure. Added benefits are also reflected in safer 
trees with fewer branch failures. For trees that serve as a replacement for a protected trees, they shall be pruned 
in the following way: 
 
1.  Young trees should be pruned during the second year after planting to improve their structure, and only 

minor crown cleaning every 3-7 years thereafter. Refer to ISA Tree Pruning Guidelines (see Appendix 
E). 

 
2.  Do not top the main leader except to position the lowest main branch. Other main branches should be 

spaced at least 18-inches apart to alleviate a tight grouping branches. 
3.  Select permanent branching and allow temporary low branching on the lowest part of the trunk to 

remain. 
 
 
6.40 FERTILIZING STANDARDS (Recommended Practice) 
This section outlines performance standards for fertilizing and apply only if fertilizing is specified. Fertilizing 
mature trees is generally not necessary. Fertilizing may be specified for trees that will be impacted by upcoming 
disturbance, grade changes or a modified environment. Benefits gained from the increase stored resources may 
aid the tree to overcome the stress caused by disturbance.  
A. Specifications 
Fertilizing, if specified, shall be performed to the following standards: 
 

 Method of application: The method shall be subsurface injection, on approximate 3-foot centers (within 
the root ball on young trees; 2-feet out on older trees) and out to the approximate dripline perimeter. 
Specific situations may justify other variations such as vertical mulch, soil-fracture or surface-
broadcast methods.  

 Material and Rates: Unless specified otherwise, fertilizer formula shall be a slow-release, complete 
fertilizer with chelate trace elements (e.g. 22-14-14 or 20-20-20) and mixed at label rates not to exceed 



City of St. Helena  Draft 
Tree Management Guide  April 23, 2008 

Page 31 of 36 

4-pounds nitrogen per 100-gallons of water. Extraordinary cases may require soil and tissue sampling 
to correct target deficiencies. 

 Amount: Unless specified otherwise, volume shall be determined by mixing 10-gallons of water per 
inch of trunk diameter when measured at 54-inches above natural grade. 

 Timing: Timing should not be detrimental to tree health. Best results are derived from applications 
made during the prior growing season. Apply fertilizer between May through September for best 
results. 

 
6.45 WATERING SCHEDULE (Recommended Practices) 
Newly installed trees planted, including drought tolerant species, are dependent upon supplemental irrigation 
until established, typically for two years. Periods of extreme heat, wind or drought may require more or less 
water than recommended in these specifications. The method and amount that is applied may vary depending 
upon soil composition, heat, wind, planted in turf or ground cover, periods of abnormal rainfall or in poorly 
drained soils. 
 
A. New trees 
During the establishment period (1-2 years) trees should be watered thoroughly to their root depth as frequently 
as needed. The following schedule includes watering frequency and quantity as minimum recommended 
standards: 

 1-3 months in the ground: 4 times per month or as necessary 
 4-6 months in the ground: 2 times per month or as necessary 
 7-12 months in the ground: 1 time per month or as necessary 

 
B. Mature trees 
Most species: 1 time per month during irrigation season (usually March through September) 
Oak trees in general: deep water in May and September — do not water during other months. For oaks already 
in the vicinity of irrigated conditions, automatic sprinklers or regular watering shall not be allowed to spray on 
or within three feet of the trunk. The water shall not be allowed to pool or drain towards the trunk. 
 
 
 
6.50  INSECT AND DISEASE CONTROL (Recommended Practices) 
Generally, insect populations do not threaten tree health to the point of mortality. More often, when their 
populations become too great they create a nuisance. For example, scale on tulips or aphids feeding on purple 
leaf plums produce sticky honeydew that may be a nuisance if dripping on cars or at a storefront entry. 
Occasionally, however, pests such as Oak or Tussock Moth larvae can defoliate and severely damage a tree. 
If action is warranted, Integrated Pest Management (I.P.M.) suggests that the pest source be identified and 
targeted with a specific and timely treatment. If insects or disease can lead to the death of a protected tree, then 
it is the responsibility of the property owner to evaluate the condition according to the following guidelines and 
treat the problem in a timely fashion to prevent further deterioration of the tree 
A. Insects 
For treatment, consult a pest control operator that is licensed by the California Department of Pesticide 
Regulation. Accurate timing is critical for success. Nontoxic materials should be used whenever possible to 
control leaf-chewing insects 
 
B. Disease and Decay - above ground 
Disease such as heart-rot decay that erodes the health or weakens the structure of a protected tree may 
compromise the safety of people or property. It is the property owner’s responsibility to correct a known 
hazardous condition in a timely fashion. 
 
Consult with a certified arborist for remedy possibilities, for example, pruning out infected branches, thinning, 
or the spray application of a chemical treatment. 
 
C. Disease - below ground  
Soilborne diseases, such as Oak Root Fungus (Armillaria mellea) or Root Rot (Phytophthora sp.), are present in 
St. Helena soils. Often, a poor landscape design surrounding old trees encourages harmful, and often lethal 
diseases. The following conditions that favor a disease environment must be avoided. 
 



City of St. Helena  Draft 
Tree Management Guide  April 23, 2008 

Page 32 of 36 

Conditions to avoid:  
Compacting of the soil within the tree’s dripline, adding fill dirt, rototilling, trenching, removing soil from the 
tree root area, and excessive or regular watering on or near the tree trunk area and planting incompatible water-
loving plants within the tree’s dripline. Combined with poorly-drained soil, these factors often activate normally 
dormant fungi to become opportunistic and infect the tree to cause the decline and eventual death of the tree. 
This decline can be slow and may not be evident for many years. 
 
Landscape Design 
When planning landscaping around a protected tree, an evaluation of the tree and soil must be performed to 
determine if there is a disease present. If the tree is diseased and landscaping will contribute to decline, 
permanent damage or render it hazardous, it is the obligation of the property owner to take reasonable measures 
to reduce or eliminate the conditions that may cause the decline of the protected or designated tree. 

 To identify cultural conditions that may lead to diseases such as Oak Root Fungus, Verticillium, 
Phytophthora or other soilborne fungi, review the Sunset Western Garden Book or consult with a 
Certified Arborist 

 Use plants under oaks that have low to moderate water needs 
 Plants selected for use under an oak should not need water more than once a month 
 Use a drip system to irrigate around an oak so that runoff does not flood the area. 

 
D. Foliar disease 
Leaf spot or galls may be chronic or reoccur with specific seasons. Though many of these diseases destroy leaf 
tissue and become unsightly, they may not significantly reduce the trees health and therefore need not be 
treated.  
 
6.60 FRUIT CONTROL (Recommended Practices) 
While all trees produce flowers or fruit of some kind, some trees can be considered a nuisance if the use area is 
not compatible with the litter generated by the tree. For example, the dropping fruit of the European Olive (Olea 
europaea), American Sweet Gum (Liquidamber styraciflua), or acorn drip of a Holly Oak (Quercus ilex) may 
be a safety hazard if it is in the proximity of a high pedestrian area and will thus justify control measures. 
Control can only be successful if materials are applied carefully at optimum timing. For treatment to control the 
situation, consult a pest control operator that is licensed by the California Department of Pesticide Regulation. 
 
Note: Fruit bearing trees are not allowed as Street trees within the City of St. Helena 
 
6.90 FIRE PROTECTION: KEEPING OPEN SPACE, PARKS & COMMUNITY SAFE 
The following measures are recommended but not required. If followed, they may help avoid a catastrophic and 
irreplaceable fire loss to persons, houses, hillsides and mature trees that are centuries old. 
Checklist: 
� Keep dry grass mowed below 6-inches. 
� A 30-foot defensible space should be obtained. 
� No vegetation growing or combustible storage under decking. 
� No tree canopy within 10-feet of chimney spark arrester. 
� Break up solid areas of continuous plant growth which create a ‘fire-ladder’. 
� Ask nursery professionals about fire-resistant shrubs to use in landscaping. 
� Keep tree well watered, regularly pruned and in healthy condition. 
� Prevent build-up of leaves and old branches. 
� No firewood storage within 10-feet of structures. 
� Make sure your driveway, road and bridges allow access for fire equipment (13-foot vehicle clearance 
needed). 
� Homes adjacent to slopes over 30% will need additional clearing of vegetation from the structure 100-200 
feet to protect against radiant and convective heat currents and flame reach. 
 
6.95 TIPS FOR SELECTING AN ARBORIST 
A. Who should you look for? 
Hiring a tree care provider deserves careful consideration and caution. A mistake can be expensive and long-
lasting, while the right choice can assure health, beauty and longer life for your trees and landscape. The 
following suggestions will help you select an arborist: 
 



City of St. Helena  Draft 
Tree Management Guide  April 23, 2008 

Page 33 of 36 

 Check the phone directory, usually under trees or tree care service. Listings in the directory should 
indicate some degree of permanence. Look for professional membership affiliations. 

 Membership does not guarantee quality, but a lack of it may cast doubt on the company’s commitment 
to professionalism. 

 Beware of door-knockers. Most reputable companies have all the work they can handle without going 
door-to-door.  

 Request that the sales person be an arborist or tree worker that has been certified through a program of 
the International Society of Arboriculture 

 Require a certificate of insurance, including liability for personal notes: injury and property damage 
(such as your house and your neighbor’s), and workers compensation. Phone their insurance company 
to make certain each policy is current. Under some circumstances, the property owner may be held 
financially responsible if an uninsured worker is hurt on your property, or if damage is done to a 
neighbor’s property! 

 Ask for local references and other jobs the company or individual has done in St. Helena. Experience, 
education and good reputation are signs of a good arborist. 

 Have more than one arborist look at your job and give you a written estimate that clearly states their 
scope of work. Don’t expect a company to lower its bid to match another’s bid. Be willing to pay for 
the estimate if necessary. Two or more opinions and estimates are worth the extra effort. 

 A good arborist will offer a wide range of services including removal, pruning, fertilizing, cabling, pest 
control, etc. 

 A good arborist will not recommend topping except in rare circumstances (such as; crown restoration 
after severe physical or wind damage, or for a formal setting in a restricted space). 

 A knowledgeable arborist will not use climbing spikes if the tree is to remain in the landscape. These 
should be used only for tree removal. 

 Beware of an arborist who is eager to remove a living tree. Removal clearly should be a last resort. 
 
B. The Contract for Services 
To be assured of having your work performed to the standards you expect, a contract should include all the 
necessary assurances. Most companies will provide their own contract and should include the following basics: 
 

 Dates that work will begin and end. 
 List exactly what will be done. If your tree is to be sprayed, get a written statement detailing the insect 

or disease to be treated, the chemical to be used and what precautions you need to take (cover patio 
furniture, keep pets inside, etc.).  

 If fertilizer, how many pounds of fertilizer per inch of trunk diameter will be applied and by what 
method. 

 Cleanup procedures should be listed and whether firewood will need to be cut (and into what lengths) 
should both be mentioned. 

 Clarify if a tree removal includes grinding the stump and surface roots and if so, how deep? 
 Will they remove grindings and backfill the hole? 
 The total dollar amount you will be charged. 
 Work is usually priced in one of two ways: (a) as a single price for the job, or (b) on an hourly basis 

plus materials. When using the latter, be sure to include the wording, “...but not to exceed...” 
 
C. Using Arborists for Preventative Care 
A proactive tree and plant health care program can assure that minor, early pruning will prevent major, 
corrective pruning later on. An annual inspection will likely help you develop the landscape relatively hazard-
free and display attractive curb appeal. Consulting arborists also offer advice and appraisals, diagnosis of 
problems and recommend treatment. They also can serve as a ‘second opinion’, if needed. 
 
 
 

- END OF SECTION -  
 



City of St. Helena  Draft 
Tree Management Guide  April 23, 2008 

Page 34 of 36 

Section 7 
TREE REPORTS 

 
SECTION 7.00  
 
INTRODUCTION 
An arborist report is needed for development projects. The report must be prepared by a certified arborist for the 
applicant and submitted to the City for the purpose of providing accurate information and opinion regarding the 
condition, welfare, maintenance, preservation or value of a protected tree. 
 
A. When a written report is required 
Generally, tree reports are required: 
 
To complete and verify a site plan, assess tree impacts and establish tree protection for property development 
when within the dripline of a protected tree. Types of report formats are: Tree Survey, Tree Protection Plan and 
Tree Appraisal. 
 
B. Who may prepare the report 
The tree report is to be prepared by a certified arborist or landscape architect retained by the applicant or 
property owner. This person shall possess a current ISA certification; be a member of the American Society of 
Consulting Arborists or Associate of Landscape Architects; or a member of good standing in another nationally 
recognized tree research, care, and preservation organization. 
 
7.05 
7.20 TYPE OF REPORT: TREE SURVEY FORMAT 
A ‘Tree Survey Report’ is required for all development projects. The report shall inventory all trees that are 
greater than 4-inches in diameter (measured at 12-inches above natural grade) on site, including trees to be 
removed, relocated and retained on the property (including trees on neighboring properties that overhang the 
project site) and all street trees in the right-of-way within 30-feet of the project site. In addition, the Tree Survey 
Report, shall include an inventory of the trees, site plan, appraised value of the trees and any other information 
pertinent to the project. 
 
7.25 SURVEY REPORT - SUBMITTALS  
 
A. Items to include 
All Tree Survey Reports shall contain the following information: Arborist name and certification number; cover 
letter; title page; table of contents (if necessary); purpose of the report and for whom; site address; date of the 
inspection(s); site plan (showing each tree location by number that correlates with the tree inventory on plans; 
tree inventory data (include tree species, size, health, structure, etc. for all trees on the project site, including 
those to be removed (tables may be used); condition of the trees (include information with respect to health, 
structure, decay, imminent danger of falling, existing property lines, structures and utility services) conclusion, 
recommendation(s) and rated for suitability for preservation. The report shall include a separate list of all 
protected trees with location numbers. If necessary, other supporting information, photographs, diagrams, etc. 
may be required or provided. 
 
7.30 TREE PROTECTION/PRESERVATION REPORT 
All protected trees to be retained on a development site shall be shown on approved sets of civil, building and 
landscape plans and shall be protected during the construction process. A Tree Protection Plan submitted for 
review by the Public Works Department is required when trees to be saved may be injured by disturbance. The 
tree preservation plan shall assume compliance with standards in Section 3.00 of this Manual (see Protection of 
Trees During Construction, Section 3.00). In addition, the following submittal information must be included in 
the report:  
 
A. Scope & Construction Phasing 
The tree protection plan shall identify, but not be limited to, written recommendations for the health and long-

 



City of St. Helena  Draft 
Tree Management Guide  April 23, 2008 

Page 35 of 36 

term welfare of trees that are to be followed during the following distinct phases and conditions: 
preconstruction; during construction, post construction, demolition activities; methods of avoiding injury, 
damage treatment and inspections. Schedules shall be included.  
B. Tree Protection Zone 
The tree protection plan shall establish a tree protection zone (TPZ) for each tree to be fenced and clearly outline 
site-specific measures for protection of the trees during construction and describe a plan for continued 
maintenance of those trees after construction. After project approval, any changes to the protection measures 
must be approved in writing, by the City Arborist or authorized City staff. The tree protection plan shall include 
the following site plan elements: 
 
7.35 SITE PLAN 
 
A. Disclosure of all trees on and near the site 
The property owner or designee shall provide accurate information to the project arborist to develop the tree 
protection measures and to enable accurate recommendations to insure their survival. This site plan shall 
accurately show the surveyed location, species, size of trunk and leaf 
canopy; show the dripline of any neighboring trees that may overhang the site and street trees that are within 30-
feet on each side of the project (see Tree Disclosure Statement, Appendix I). Failure to show a tree on the plans 
and later determined to be affected by construction may require the work to stop until mitigation can be agreed 
upon by the property owner and the City. 
 
B. Plans submitted to the City 
In addition to the above information, final improvement plans shall include and show the following information: 
show the tree protection zone of any tree to be retained and denote a 5-foot chain link type fencing around the 
protected zone of each tree or group of trees (to be clearly identified as such on all plans as a bold-dashed line); 
permeable paving located within the dripline area; approved utility pathways; grade changes; surface and 
subsurface drainage and aeration systems to be used; walls, tree wells, retaining walls and grade change barriers, 
both temporary and permanent; landscaping and irrigation within dripline of trees. 
 
C. Plans must show tree protection 
Protective tree fencing identified within the arborist report, both written and diagrammatic, shall be clearly 
shown as a bold, dashed line on the approved site plans submitted for demolition, grading, construction, building 
permit or any other aspects that are relevant to the project. 
 
7.40 TREE APPRAISAL 
Landscape value may contribute from seven to 20-percent of the real estate property value. An individual tree 
has an inherent value to the real estate that can be determined by an appraisal prepared by a certified arborist. An 
appraisal is a process for determining a monetary opinion of the value of a tree as it relates to either the property, 
a group of trees and/or the immediate community. A qualified certified arborist is required to determine this 
value, and must exercise good and fair judgement by adjusting the basic value by the tree’s condition and 
location.  
 
The City of St. Helena reserves the right to use the following method in order to appraise trees for mitigation 
purposes. 
 
7.45 APPRAISAL METHODS 
The certified arborist must prepare the appraisal by using the most current edition of 
(1) the ‘Guide for Plant Appraisal’, published by the Council of Tree and Landscape Appraisers, and (2) the 
most recent ‘Form for Northern California’ established by the International Society of Arboriculture. 
 
A. The Replacement Cost Method 
Applies to smaller trees with a trunk size up to 4-inches in diameter or, 48- inch box size trees (replaceable.) For 
this method, the appraised value shall be determined by combining: price quote + transportation + planting + 
other costs and applying the condition and location value to the tree. The sum of these is the appraised 
replacement cost. 
 
 
- END OF SECTION - 



City of St. Helena  Draft 
Tree Management Guide  April 23, 2008 

Page 36 of 36 

 

Appendix 
 

All referenced documents in the manual will be inserted here for final draft. 
 

 

 



Tree Permit Application Evaluation Standards 

- Is the tree in good health 
o Has the owner maintained it with proper watering and pruning

- How will the removal affect the tree vista on that street 
o Will removal result in a large loss of street/sidewalk shade
o Will removal cause a large gap in the tree vista

- Is the tree a desirable species for location 
o Is it a native species
o Does it match with master street tree plan or existing trees
o How big will the tree grow vs utility lines or overhanging structures
o Will the roots affect the sidewalk, road or utility lines (if applicable)

- Does the tree pose a hazard 
o If yes has the applicant maintained the tree
o If yes is the poor health due to natural causes/disease/age

- For construction 
o Can the design plans be altered to save the tree(s)
o Did developer/owner attempt to save trees on property or clear cut the lot
o Did developer submit a tree protection plan (for new subdivisions and

commercial projects only)
- Is there room on the property to plant replacement city protected trees 

o If not is the owner willing to pay for purchase and installation of new tree(s) on
city property

- What type of tree does the owner want to replant 
o It is not recommended to approve removing a native or large species for a

smaller stature tree unless advised by the City Arborist that a large tree will
cause structural damages to the street, sidewalk or utility lines

- Replacement planting 
o Committee should designate a specific window

 Typically between October and March
 Committee will review these outstanding permits quarterly

o Committee may designate a specific tree or several options for the owner as well
as specific size of tree

 Typically would be a 15 gallon unless the City Arborist advises otherwise

ITEM 6C



Printed 9/4/2015 St. Helena Tree Permits - Removal Mitigation

 Update 2015

Last Update 03/2015

Address Reason for removal Mitigation, Type Date Owner Status

1 1644 Spring Mountain Walnut tree in declining health 15 Gallon Chinese Pistache or Ornamental Pear 3/12/2012 John Jaeger owner does not want to plant, issue 12.24.200 "public nuissance"?

2 1151 Vintage Remove 5 Alnthus trees lifting sidewalk 5-15 gallon Chinese Pistache/Crepe Myrtle 2/14/2013 Kathleen Forni Arborist to check

3 1131 Paulson Sycamore, water main surrounded by roots 24" Box Sycamore 7/10/2014 Kathy Chesky landscaping not completed, issue 12.24.200 public nuissance"?

4 1554 & 1550 Voorhees Mimosa on city side, crowding Allow City Arborist to remove replace at owner's cost, 15 gallon tree 8/14/2014 City Staff hasn't had time

5 1221 Springbrook Court Mexican Fan Palm is messy and safety hazard 15 gallon tree, landscape not complete 8/14/2014 landsca[ing not complete, Jim to drive by and check

6 1325 Main Street Roots lifting structure 24" box Chinese Pistache 9/11/2012 Orin Swift Waiting on sidewalk design

7 St. Helena Library Remove to put bike rack 4, 15 gallon trees, bike rack City Waiting on bee garden

8 1000 N. Crane Ave 7, 15 gallon Crape Myrtles 5/10/2012 City Being considered for Master Gardener's Demo Garden

9 Caltrans 10 trees Caltrans Arborist to provide list of where, still working on it

10 St. Helena Library New HVAC at library Remove 1 tree, replacement on Southside 1/28/2014 City Tree removed, replacement not completed, waiting on bee garden

11 1480 Main (Chevron) Main Street Replacement tree Chinese Pistasche Sep-13 City Waiting on sidewalk design

12 1153 Main (Exxon) Main Street Replacement tree Chinese Pistasche Sep-13 City Waiting on sidewalk design

13 1065 Main (Umpua) Main Street Replacement tree Chinese Pistasche Sep-13 City Waiting on sidewalk design

14 1000 Adams St Tree was damaged in a hit and run No mitigation. Tree Chanticlear Pear. West America Bank Replacement tree is here, on list to plant

15 1550 Kearney Remove birch tree Replant with Crepe Myrtle 7/11/2011 Pacific Tree Care Nuissance issue?

16 1655 Slyvanier Redwood Tree top came off Alexander Hasslip

17 1764 Scott St Arborist to keep an eye on

18 2070 Spring St 2 Plums removed Arborist to check on status

19 Spring St/Valley View denied to remove

20 1341 Main Street Waiting on sidewalk design

1 no tree installed

2 Re-landscaped w/o any trees in place

3 no tree installed (wrong address)

4 city staff will scheduled for fall planting

5 Landscaping is still not complete

6 Winter work

7 south side of library

8 southside of library

9 use funds to purchase 10 trees to be planted #7/8/10

10 south side of library

11 winter work

12 winter work

13 winter work

14 fall planting

15 unlable to locate  permit.stump located and no tree planted 

16 no mitigation required 

17 on going inspections no mitigation required at this time…trees were removes due to them deemed a hazard and was an emergency removal

18 un able to locate permit, there are four crape myrtles in place

19 no action removal was denied 

20 winter work

add ons 1140 Crinella ave property owner required to plant Chinese Pistache by 11/2015

1531 Oak ave Property owner owes city 2 15 gal tree ( in exchange to the removal of 2 crape myrtles)

ITEM  6D



Proposed Revisions DRAFT July 24, 2014 

Page 1 of 20 

CITY OF ST. HELENA 

ORDINANCE NO. 

AMENDING CHAPTER 12.24 “TREES AND 

OTHER VEGETATION” OF THE ST. HELENA 

MUNICIPAL CODE 

The City Council of the City of St. Helena does hereby ordain as follows: 

SECTION 1:   Chapter 12.24 of the St. Helena Municipal cCode is amended to read as 

follows (additions shown by underline and deletions shown by strikethrough): 

12.24.010 Findings and purpose. 

A. The city council finds and declares that trees a healthy urban forest 

contributes greatly to the health, safety, and general welfare of all of the city’s 

citizens and that the preservation and proper maintenance of trees is a matter of 

city-wide concern. The city council further finds and determines that it is necessary 

to enact regulations protecting trees on public and private property and prohibiting 

unnecessary damage, removal, or destruction of trees in the urban forest. 

B. The city council recognizes and finds that urban  trees provide great positive 

aesthetic benefits, offer windbreaks, provide summer shade, noise abatement, and 

privacy screening, erosion control, act as filters against airborne pollutants, release 

oxygen, are and serve as wildlife habitats, and prevent landslides through their root 

systems. All trees perform these functions for the property on which they are 

growing. Trees of significant size and maturity perform these functions for all 

persons living in their vicinity. within the urban forest, Trees and are key elements 

in a living system, the boundaries of which do not conform to the arbitrary 

property lines of individual lots and parcels. and upon which the continued health 

and welfare of this community depends. In addition, trees in the community and in 

a neighborhood within the urban forest provide a sense of identity, and tradition, 

and townscape, and enhance property values. 

C. The city council further finds and declares that careless treatment and arbitrary 

removal of trees detracts from scenic beauty, causes erosion, increases risks of 

landslides, reduces property values and the desirability of neighborhoods, increases 

drainage costs, thereby further reduces the attractiveness of an area and may 

negatively impact the local ecosystem and its residents. 

D. A purpose of the city council in enacting the following regulations is to 

protect certain trees that are an essential part of the city’s natural heritage, referred 

to in this chapter as heritage trees and other protected trees, wherever they may be 

ITEM 6E Proposed Ordinance



Proposed Revisions DRAFT July 24, 2014 

Page 2 of 20 

 

 

 
 

growing in the city, while at the same time, recognizing an individual property 

owner’s right to utilize his or her land in a way that is otherwise allowed by law. 
 
E. The tree committee shall act in the best interests of maintaining the cit y’ s  

status as a Tree City USA as assigned by The Arbor Day Foundation. 
 

(Ord. 01-6 § 3 (part): prior code § 17.1) 
 

 
 

12.24.020 Definitions. 

 
When used in this chapter, the following words and phrases shall apply: 

 
"Alter" means to take an action that could foreseeable foreseeably diminish the 

health and vigor of a tree. Alter includes but is not limited to: excessive or 

improper pruning of a tree, grade changes around or near a tree, excessive 

irrigation of a tree, and trenching in the root zone of a tree. Alter does not include 

periodic pruning of a tree to preserve or protect its health, growth, or appearance in 

accordance with accepted arboricultural standards and practices. 
 
“ANSI” means the American National Standards Institute. 

 

“Arborist” means certified arborist, city arborist, certified city tree worker, or 

project arborist. 
 

Candidate Heritage Tree. The tree committee shall adopt and maintain a list of 

properties or parcels that contain a tree of a size, species or historical value that 

makes it eligible for heritage tree status. 
 

"Certified arborist" means a person who has been tested by and is currently 

certified as an "arborist" by the International Society of Arboriculture or who is a 

registered member of the American Society of Consulting Arborists. 
 

"Certified tree worker" means a person who has been tested by and is currently 

certified as a  "tree worker" by the International Society of Arboriculture. 
 

"City" means and includes all territory over which the city now has, or shall 

hereafter acquire, jurisdiction for the exercise of its police powers or other 

regulatory powers. 
 
 “C it y arborist” means  a  c ertified  arbo rist  design ate d  b y the  

director of public works. 
 

“City tree” means a tree growing on any city-owned property, right of way or 

easement dedicated to the city. All city trees, as defined in this section, are 

protected trees. 
 

"Committee" means the tree committee established pursuant to this chapter. 



Proposed Revisions DRAFT July 24, 2014 

Page 3 of 20 

 

 

 
 

  “Diameter at breast height” and  “D BH ”  means the diameter of a tree 

measured at fifty-four (54) inches above the natural grade. 
 

"Director" means the director of public works or the director’s designated 

representative. 
 
"Drip line" means an area of the ground delineated by the vertical projection of the 

outside periphery of the foliage crown area of a tree down to the ground surface. 
 

“Excessive pruning” means removing more than twenty-five (25) percent of the 

functioning leaf, stem or root in any twelve-month period, or removal of foliage 

causing an unnatural or unbalanced appearance. 
 

“Habitat” means the region where a plant or animal naturally grows or lives. 
 

"Heritage tree" means any tree or grove of trees within the city boundaries 

designated by a resolution of the city council and having met the requirements set 

forth in this chapter. 
 
“Landscape architect” means an individual holding a valid license to practice 

landscape architecture in the State of California. 
 
"Maintain" or "maintenance" means watering, trimming, pruning, pest 

management, injecting, fertilizing, cabling, treating for injury and other similar acts 

which promote the life, growth, health or beauty of trees and other plants, 

excepting watering only, unless specifically so stated. 
 
"Master street tree list" means the list of trees approved for planting in planting 

strips and planting easements, city parks and other city properties, as approved by 

the city council. 
 
"Master tree plan" means the plan designating specific trees and maintenance 

practices for specific locations in areas of the city, as approved by the city council. 
 
“Permit” means a form supplied by the city to any resident, tree company, or utility 

company requesting to remove or alter any protected tree(s) or to plant trees in the 

city’s right of way or on city property. 
 

"Planting easement" means an easement held by the city on private property for 

sidewalks, plantings and/or utilities. 
 
"Planting strip" means the any portion of the public right-of-way. between the 

curb, gutter or edge of street surfacing and the property line, but excluding curbs 

and sidewalks. 
 

 “P roject”  me ans  an activity for which a tree permit, building permit, grading 

permit, demolition permit, encroachment permit, variance, design review approval, 

use permit, or tentative/final map approval is required by the city under this code. 



Proposed Revisions DRAFT July 24, 2014 

Page 4 of 20 

 

 

 
 

 “P roject  arborist” means  a certifi ed  arbo rist  retain ed  b y a prope rt y  

owner or developer as required by the city for the purpose of overseeing on-

site activity involving the welfare of the trees to be retained. The project 

arborist prepares reports, appraisals and tree preservation plans, and conducts 

inspections, as required by the city. 
 

"Property owner" means the person listed on the then-current assessor’s roll as the 

owner of a designated property. 

 
“Protected replacement tree” means any tree that is planted on public or private property 

as a condition of mitigation for the removal of any existing native or heritage tree(s). The 

intent of this designation is to insure that trees planted as replacement trees for heritage 

trees or significant native trees that have to be removed will be protected and preserved 

so that over the course of time these replacement trees will mature to the size and 

uniqueness of the trees they replace. Protected replacement trees by definition are subject 

to all of the conditions and protections as those for heritage trees as set forth in this 

chapter. 
 

“Protected tree” means heritage tree, protected replacement tree, street tree and city tree. 
 

"Protected tree" means any of the following trees on public or private property: 
 

1.   Heritage tree as established by the terms of this chapter; 
 

2.   Replacement tree as established by the terms of this chapter; 
 

3.   City tree; 
 

4.   The following protected species; 
 

a.   Coastal Redwood (Sequoia sempervirens) greater than or equal 

to twenty-four (24) inches DBH; 
 

b.   Blue Oak (Quercus douglasii) greater than or equal to six (6) 

inches DBH; 
 

c.   California Black oak (Quercus keloggii), Coastal Live Oak 

(Quercus agrifolia), Interior Live Oak (Quercus wislizenii), 

Valley Oak (Quercus lobata), California Sycamore (Platanus 

racemosa), London Plane Tree (Platanus x acerifolia), 

California Incense Cedar (Calocedrus decurrens), or Deodar 

Cedar (Cedrus deodora) greater than or equal to twelve (12) 

inches DBH; 
 

d.   Canary Island Date Palm (Phoenix canariensis) greater than or 

equal to twenty-five (25) feet in height; 
 

e.   Any tree greater than or equal to twenty-four (24) inches DBH; 



Proposed Revisions DRAFT July 24, 2014 

Page 5 of 20 

 

 

 
 

5.   All trees in Woodlands and Watershed zoning. 
 

6.   Tree designated to be saved and protected pursuant to Section 

12.24.160(F) of this chapter. 
 

 ”P runing” means the periodic trimming, shaping, thinning and removal of 

branches or limbs of a tree to: maintain plant health by removing dead, diseased or 

injured wood; control or direct growth; increase the quality or yield of fruits or 

flowers; or train young plants to position their main branches or ensure strong 

structure. 
 

"Public utility" means every gas, electrical, telephone, cable and water service, 

waste disposal or recycling corporation where such service is performed for the 

city and its residents. 
 
"Qualified city employee," with reference to tree maintenance, means any city park 

or public works employee who satisfies the ANSI A300 definition of a qualified 

tree worker (Section 3.41) of ANSI A300-1995, and  complies with the standards of 

ANSI A300-1995 while performing tree maintenance, and is deemed so qualified 

by the director. 
 
“Replacement tree” (or “Protected Replacement Tree”) means any tree that is 

planted on public or private property as a condition of mitigation for the removal of 

any existing tree.  Replacement trees by definition are subject to all of the 

conditions and protections as those for protected trees as set forth in this chapter. 
 

“Right of Way” (“Public Right of Way”) is a type of easement reserved by the city 

for the use of public transportation purposes; including but not limited to public 

footpaths and sidewalks, utility or communication line installation and 

maintenance, and planting of street trees.  This measurement is referenced in the 

Napa County Assessor’s Map. 
 

“Root zone” means an area surrounding a tree extending from the trunk of the tree 

to the natural drip line of the tree. 
 

"Root zone" means the area of the ground around the trunk of a tree within the drip 

line and an additional ten (10) foot wide circular area of ground around the outside 

of the drip line of a tree. 
 

"Solar collector" means a fixed device or structure, or a part of a device or 

structure, which is used primarily to transform solar energy into thermal, chemical 

or electrical energy, and used as part of a system which makes use of solar energy 

for any or all of the following purposes: (a) water heating; (b) space heating or 

cooling; and (c) power generation. 
 
"Street" means land which has been dedicated, condemned or legally established 

by use for a public thoroughfare, whether paved or unpaved in whole or in part, 

except state highways and freeways. "Street" includes all thoroughfares whether 



Proposed Revisions DRAFT July 24, 2014 

Page 6 of 20 

 

 

 
 

designated by that name or some other, such as avenue, court, way, boulevard or 

road. 
 
“Street line” means the property line marking the boundary between private 

property and a city street or right-of-way. 
 
 “S treet  t re e”  means  a  tre e  planted  in  a  planti ng  stri p  or  planting  e asement.  

 

 “S treet  tre e” means  a tree growing within the public planting strip or right-of-

way or on an easement dedicated to the city. 
 

“Tree protection plan” or “TPP” means a plan prepared by a certified arborist or 

landscape architect that contains measures to protect and preserve trees at a project 

site. 
 

“Tree protection zone” means the area of temporary fenced tree enclosure. Unless 

otherwise specified by the project arborist or city arborist, the tree protection zone 

shall be equivalent to the root zone. 
 

“Tree report” means a written report prepared by a certified arborist that provides 

a brief description of a tree to determine whether or not a tree is dead, hazardous, 

or constitutes a public nuisance. 
 

“Tree survey report” means a written report by a certified arborist that provides an 

inventory of all trees on a project site and includes, but is not limited to, 

information regarding a tree’s location, species, size, condition, maintenance 

needs, potential impacts of disturbance, recommended mitigation measures, and 

appraisal value. 
 

“Trench” means to excavate to provide irrigation or install foundations, utility 

lines, services, pipe, drainage or other property improvements below grade. 
 

“Verification of tree protection” means a written report prepared by the project 

arborist and certifying that all pre-construction conditions have been satisfied 

including, but not limited to, tree fencing and erosion control measures. 
 

“Viewshed” means an area of land, water, or other environmental element that is 

visible to the human eye from a fixed vantage point, including but not limited to 

vineyards, mountains, and other elements of particular scenic or historic value. 
 

(Ord. 01-6 § 3 (part): prior code § 17.2) 
 

 
 

12.24.030 Tree committee. 
 
The tree committee shall consist of five members, plus two alternates. A majority 

of the members shall be residents of the city. Each member shall be appointed by 

the mayor with the approval of the city council. The tree committee shall serve as 



Proposed Revisions DRAFT July 24, 2014 

Page 7 of 20 

 

 

 
 

an appeals board to decisions of the director on tree issues, shall perform other 

functions as defined within this chapter, and shall annually review and update the 

master tree plan and tree list. In all matters pertaining to trees in the city, the 

committee shall act in an advisory capacity to the city council, the director, the 

parks and recreation commission, the planning commission and to the public. The 

committee shall devise a set of bylaws governing its meetings. The term of office 

of one member of the committee shall expire on June 30th of the next calendar 

year following appointment of the committee and the term of each other member 

of the committee shall expire on June 30th of each subsequent year. Committee 

member appointments after the first expiration date shall be for three-year terms. 

(Ord. 02-5 § 15a; Ord. 01-6 § 3 (part): prior code § 17.4) 
 

 
 

12.24.040 Master tree plan. 

 
The tree committee, with the assistance of the director, shall prepare and 

recommend to the council a comprehensive plan of street trees for all streets of the 

city where planting areas are available and provided for trees. The master tree plan 

may shall be reviewed and revised recommended for revision from time to time by 

the tree committee. In accordance with the plan, the director shall proceed each 

year to plant or replace trees to the extent that funds are appropriated for that 

purpose by the city council. (Ord. 01-6 § 3 (part): prior code § 17.5) 
 

 
 

12.24.050 Master street tree list. 

 
A. The tree committee, with the assistance of the director, shall determine criteria 

for selection of street and park trees, and develop and recommend to the city 

council a list of trees which meet these criteria. When approved by the city council, 

the list shall be known as the "master street tree list" and shall be made available to 

the public. The master street tree list shall be reviewed and recommended for 

revision from time to time by the tree committee.   Only trees on the master street 

tree list may be planted in planting strips and planting easements, except as may be 

approved by the tree committee according to provisions of this chapter. 
 

B. The tree committee shall also develop and recommend to the city council a list 

of undesirable trees which shall not be planted anywhere in the city unless he 

director approves the site as one where the trees’ roots will not interfere with a 

sewer line or public sidewalk or when measures are taken to protect such sewer 

lines and sidewalks using commercial barriers or root-control containers. (Ord. 01- 

6 § 3 (part): prior code § 17.6) 
 

 
 

12.24.060 City responsibility for  P planting, maintenance and removal of city 

trees protected trees. 
 
A. Supervision. 



Proposed Revisions DRAFT July 24, 2014 

Page 8 of 20 

 

 

 
 

1.  The director shall authorize the planting, maintenance and removal of 

hazardous trees or other plants in any planting strip, planting easement, 

right-of-way, or public way or place in the city; 

2. The director shall authorize the removal of non-hazardous trees in any 

planting strip, planting easement, right-of-way, or pubic way or place in the 

city with the approval of the tree committee. 
 

B.    Planting and Maintenance. The selection, planting and maintenance of trees in 

all planting strips or planting easements within the city shall be in accordance with 

provisions of this chapter and the master street tree plan. 
 
C.   Damaged, Injured or Hazardous Trees.  City Protected trees in a condition 

which, in the opinion of the director,  that are an immediate threat to life or property 

in the opinion of the Director shall have such conditions corrected or the tree shall 

be removed as soon as is practical.   The director shall make this decision after 

consultation with a certified arborist if circumstances permit. Except in such 

emergency circumstances, city  protected trees which are damaged, injured or 

destroyed shall have conditions corrected or removed only with approval from the 

tree committee.   upon recommendations of the director, after consultation with the 

city arborist.   In all cases the hazardous condition shall be corrected as soon as 

conditions permit. (Ord. 01-6 § 3 (part): prior code § 17.7) 
 

 
 

12.24.070 City and Property Owner Rresponsibility for maintenance of street 

trees and plants in planting strips 

 
A. Except for heritage trees as set forth in Section 12.24.110 and as otherwise 

allowed by the city council, the property owner fronting a planting strip shall have 

the responsibility to maintain and care for the street trees and other plants in the 

planting strip in front of his or her property; to water, spray and trim for beauty; to 

pay the expense of repairs to property owner’s property or to sewer laterals which 

repairs are necessitated by damage caused by street trees or other plants in planting 

strips; to trim plants other than trees so as to prevent endangering the security, 

usefulness or safety of any public street; to repair curb and sidewalk damage 

caused by trees; and to remove and replace trees in the planting strip if removal is 

necessary to the public health or safety, including disease control; and to apply for 

all permits as required by the city for the entire scope of the tree work. 
 

B. Notwithstanding subsection A of this section, the city shall have the 

responsibility to maintain and care for the street trees and other plants in the 

planting strip along Main Street between Sulphur Creek Bridge and Pine Street; to 

water, spray and trim such trees for beauty; to trim plants other than trees so as to 

prevent endangering the security, usefulness or safety of such portion of Main 

Street; and to remove and replace trees in such planting strip if removal is 

necessary to the public health or safety, including disease control. The property 

owners fronting the planting strip along Main Street between Sulphur Creek Bridge 

and Pine Street shall continue to have the responsibility to pay the expense of 



Proposed Revisions DRAFT July 24, 2014 

Page 9 of 20 

 

 

 
 

repairs to the property owner’s property or to sewer laterals which repairs are 

necessitated by damage caused by trees or other plants in such planting strip; and 

to repair curb and sidewalk damage caused by such street trees. The city’s 

responsibility to trim and maintain tree roots in such planting strip shall arise only 

when the property owner repairs curbs and/or sidewalk damage caused by the tree 

roots. 
 
C. All maintenance, removal and replacement of street trees and other plants in 

planting strips shall be subject to the provisions of this chapter, including Sections 

12.24.060 and 12.24.090. (Ord. 01-6 § 3 (part): prior code § 17.8) 
 

 
 

12.24.080 Hazardous vegetation deemed nuisance. 

 
Any plant material or part thereof growing upon private property but overhanging 

or interfering with the use of any public street, easement or right-of-way that in the 

opinion of the director endangers the life, health, safety or property of the public 

shall be declared a public nuisance and subject to abatement pursuant to the 

provisions of Chapters 5.32 and 8.08 of this code. (Ord. 01-6 § 3 (part): prior code 

§ 17.9) 
 
 
 
 

12.24.090 General provisions. 

 
A. Provisions for city and public action in regards to trees 

 
1. No person, other than the director or his or her authorized representative, 

shall plant or prune any tree within the planting strip or planting easement 

along any street without first obtaining a written permit to do so from the 

director. The request for such a permit shall state the type and number of 

trees, planting and pruning procedures, trenching procedures, the location 

and such other information as may from time to time be required by the 

director. 

 
2. Tree permit application fees may be waived at the discretion of the 

director or tree committee for applications to plant new protected trees or to 

prune or otherwise maintain heritage trees. 
 

3. No person shall prune, alter, brace or remove or cause to be pruned, 

altered, braced or removed any tree that is currently host to a group of 

nesting birds, bats or bees without following the federal, state, and local 

regulations and guidelines as to such trees. 



Proposed Revisions DRAFT July 24, 2014 

Page 10 of 20 

 

 

 
 

B. Any tree work, tree planting, or tree removal within the city right-of-way 

requires an encroachment permit in addition to the tree permit required under this 

chapter.  Encroachment permit fees for pruning or removal of street trees will may 

be waived at the discretion of the director. 
 

C. All maintenance, removal and replacement of trees shall be performed in 

compliance with the requirements of this chapter and any tree standards adopted by 

the city. 
 
D. No person other than a property owner, the city, or a public utility may do any 

act for which a permit is required by this chapter except a person whose principal 

business is tree care, pruning or maintenance, who is a certified arborist, or who in 

the opinion of the director, is qualified for such business and has obtained a 

business license to carry on such business in the city. 
 
E. No person shall interfere or cause any person to interfere with any tree related 

work being done pursuant to this chapter by any employee of the city or any person 

or firm working under the direction of the city. (Ord. 01-6 § 3 (part): prior code § 

17.10) 
 

 
 

12.24.100 Pruning and removal permit for public utility. 

 
A. Any public utility subject to the jurisdiction of the State Public Utilities 

Commission and any duly constituted public agency providing utility service must 

first obtain a permit from the director, valid for one year from the date of issuance, 

permitting such public utility to prune or cut, below or above the ground, or brace, 

remove or perform similar acts on any protected trees or trees growing on private 

property to the extent that they encroach upon the utilities. Such work is limited to 

that which may be necessary to comply with the safety regulations of such 

commission and as may be necessary to maintain the safe operation of its business. 
 
B. Any public utility holding such a permit shall notify the director in writing at 

least five days prior to commencement of tree work and shall state the type and 

location of work contemplated. Prior to commencement of work the permit holder 

shall provide notice to adjacent property owners. All pruning and removals shall be 

performed in accordance with the American National Standards Institute (ANSI) 

A300 Standards for Tree Care Operations, Section 5.7. (Ord. 01-6 § 3 (part): prior 

code § 17.11) 

 
12.24.110 Designation of heritage trees. 
A. Candidate trees for designation as heritage trees shall be nominated by 
citizens of the community or the tree committee.  Upon nomination, and with the 

written permission of the owner of the candidate tree, a candidate tree shall be 

submitted for review by the director of public works and the tree committee.  Upon 

recommendation of the tree committee and resolution by the city council, after the 



Proposed Revisions DRAFT July 24, 2014 

Page 11 of 20 

 

 

 
 

holding of a noticed public hearing, a tree may be designated as a heritage tree by 

the city council if it meets at least one of the following criteria: 
 

1. Historical significance; 
 

2. Over thirty (30) twelve (12) inches in diameter measured four and one- 

half feet above the ground diameter at breast height; 
 

3. Unique or rare horticultural specimen; 
 

4. Uniqueness of size or age; 
 

5. Aesthetic value due to symmetry, form, color, or other qualities; 
 

6. An outstanding specimen of a desirable species, especially native oak 

species; 
 

7. Significance for habitat preservation, including where tree is one of a 

group of trees each dependant dependent on the other for survival. 
 

B. The director of public works shall cause each tree designated a heritage tree to 

be identified by placing a tag as may be specified by the director on the tree 

approximately six feet above the ground, or in another manner as may be specified 

by the director. The director shall also keep a list of the heritage trees in the city by 

number and approximate location. No person shall remove the identification 

without written permission from the director. 
 
C. Upon designation, the city shall cause a notice of heritage tree status to be 

recorded with the Napa County recorder. The heritage tree designation shall run 

with the land and be enforceable by subsequent owners of the property. 
 

D.   The owner of a heritage tree shall receive a resolution of appreciation from the 

city and may be eligible for free consultation and advice from a certified arborist 

the city arborist for the heritage tree. 
 

E. Heritage tree designation can be removed upon approval of the city council for 

good cause shown after a noticed public hearing.  The tree committee shall make a 

recommendation to the city council regarding removal of the heritage tree 

designation. 
 
F. The city arborist shall evaluate heritage trees for health and vigor on a routine 

basis. 
 

G. The city budget may appropriate funds annually for maintenance of heritage 

trees as recommended by the city arborist. 
 

(Ord. 01-6 § 3 (part): prior code § 17.12) 



Proposed Revisions DRAFT July 24, 2014 

Page 12 of 20 

 

 

 
 

 
12.24.120 Maintenance, repair and removal of heritage trees in the public 

right-of-way. 

 
A. The city shall be responsible for maintaining heritage trees in the public right- 

of-way and the costs associated with such maintenance. Maintenance shall include 

but not be limited to: watering; pruning for tree health, structure, form and for 

public safety; spraying for pathogens and insects; fertilizing; and managing the 

root zone for health and vigor. 
 
B. The city shall be responsible for repairing curb and sidewalk damage within 

the public right-of-way caused by heritage trees located in the public right-of-way. 

The city shall also be responsible for removing and replacing heritage trees in the 

public right-of-way when necessary for public health and safety, including disease 

control. 
 
C. Property owners shall be responsible for damage to their properties or to water 

and sewer lines caused by heritage trees located in the public right-of-way 

consistent with city utility maintenance policies. 
 
D. All maintenance and replacement of heritage trees in the public right-of-way 

shall be performed in compliance with the other requirements of this chapter. (Ord. 

01-6 § 3 (part): prior code § 17.13) 
 

 
 

12.24.130 Permit required planting, pruning,  Pruning, maintenance and 

removal of protected trees. 

 
A. No person shall plant, prune, alter, brace or remove, or cause to be planted, 

pruned, altered, braced or removed, any protected tree, cut or prune, below or 

above ground, brace, move, remove, cause to cut, alter, or perform such other acts 

with respect to any protected tree any heritage tree, city tree, or tree designated to 

be saved and protected pursuant to Section 12.24.160(F) without first obtaining a 

written permit to do so from the director. The application shall state the number 

and identify the location of each protected tree for which a permit is sought, and 

shall contain other pertinent information as the director may require. The 

application may also include documentation of any type, including written 

recommendations from a certified arborist concerning the health, quality and 

desirability of alternatives to the tree or trees in question. The necessity for the 

requested action shall be demonstrated to the director by the applicant. 
 
B. Upon receipt of the application, the director, in consultation with the city 

arborist, shall make a recommendation to the tree committee as to the acceptability 

of the requested action based on the following findings: 
 

1. The overall condition of the tree, including any diseases and pests that 

may be attacking it; the tree’s age with respect to its projected life span; the 



Proposed Revisions DRAFT July 24, 2014 

Page 13 of 20 

 

 

 
 

area the tree would hit if it, or any substantial part of it, were to fall; its 

symmetry and aesthetics; its proximity to existing structures; and any 

interference it has caused with underground or overhead utility lines; 
 

2. The topography of land and the effect the tree alteration or removal may 

have on possible erosion or soil retention problems or on increasing the 

flow or the diversion of surface waters; 
 

3. The number, species, size, and location of the other existing trees in the 

area and the effect the requested action will have on shade area, air 

pollution, water conservation, historic values, scenic beauty, and the 

general welfare of the city; 
 

4. Whether the request is supported by good urban forestry practices and 

standards such as, but not limited to, the number of healthy trees that a 

given parcel of land will support; 
 

5. How the proposed action would affect the urban environment and 

neighborhood viewsheds. 
 

C. The director shall provide notice of an application for a permit to plant or 

remove a protected tree to all adjacent property owners within a three hundred 

(300) foot radius of the protected tree. The notice shall state the location of the 

protected tree and the date, time and location of the public meeting of the tree 

committee to consider the tree permit.  The director shall place a public meeting 

notice on any site that is the subject of a tree permit request 15 days prior to a 

public meeting. 
 

CD. The findings of the director will be presented to the tree committee for its 

review and approval. If the director recommends and the tree committee approves 

the application, the director shall issue a permit, subject to such conditions that the 

director and the tree committee deem appropriate, which may shall include the 

planting of replacement trees. 
 
E. Tree removal as approved by the permit process requires the property owner to 

bear the full cost of tree removal, including the entire tree, stump and all debris 

unless otherwise stated in the permit. 
 

F. Replacement trees. 
 

1. Where appropriate, replacement trees shall be of a species native to those 

lands that now constitute the Napa Valley.  The city recommends 

replacement trees at the following ratios: 
 

(a) One new tree for every tree proposed to be removed on parcels 

zoned LR, MR, HR, CB, SC, BPO, I, PQP and PR; and 



Proposed Revisions DRAFT July 24, 2014 

Page 14 of 20 

 

 

 
 

(b) Three new trees for every tree proposed to be removed on 

parcels zoned A-20, W, AP, LR-1A, and WW. 
 

2. Replacement trees must be planted within forty-five (45) days of tree 

removal unless otherwise stated in the permit. 
 

3. Where on-site replacement trees are not feasible, the applicant may 

instead make an in-lieu payment to the city for provision of off-site trees at 

the ratio recommended in Section 12.24.130(E)(1). 
 

DG. All cutting or pruning, below or above the ground, bracing, or alteration of a 

protected tree shall be done only by a qualified city employee, licensed and 

certified tree worker, certified tree care company, or certified arborist. or with a 

certified arborist in attendance and supervising the entire process, except as 

otherwise allowed by the permit. 
 

EH. A permit granted under the provisions of this section shall be valid for a period 

of sixty (60) days from the date of issuance unless a longer period is stated on the 

permit. 
 
FI. Notwithstanding subsection A of this section, a qualified city employee may 

prune or cut, below or above the ground, or brace a city tree that is not a heritage 

tree, or any city tree that is a heritage tree and that creates a hazard or in an 

emergency circumstance, under the direction of the director and without review of 

the tree committee. 
 
GJ. Notwithstanding the findings required in subsection B of this section, the city 

council may approve the removal of protected trees for good causeCity council 

may approve the removal of protected trees during the appeals process. (Ord. 01-6 

§ 3 (part): prior code § 17.14) 
 

 
 

12.24.140 Damage to protected trees. 

 
A. Except as permitted in this chapter, no person shall break, injure, deface, 

mutilate, kill, remove or destroy any protected tree or knowingly cause or permit 

any wire charged with electricity to come into contact with any protected tree; or 

place, apply, attach or keep attached to any such tree a guard or stake intended for 

the protection therof, any wire, rope, sign, paint or other substance, structure, thing 

or device of any kind or nature whatsoever; or place or maintain any stone, cement 

or other substance so that it shall impede the free access of water or air to the roots 

of any protected such tree. 
 

B. Any party determined to have caused damage to any protected tree as 

described in subsection A of this section shall be liable for the cost of repair or 

replacement of the tree. Costs shall be based on Napa County landscape industry 

costs and on tree valuation standards set by the International Society of 



Proposed Revisions DRAFT July 24, 2014 

Page 15 of 20 

 

 

 
 

Arboriculture. computed under the Tree Value Replacement Standard using the 

Guide for Plant appraisal published by the Council for Landscape Tree Appraisers 

and the most recent form for Northern California as established by the Western 

Chapter of the International Society of Arboriculture.  Such moneys shall be paid 

to the city and shall be used to repair or replace the damaged tree. 
 
C.  Any party determined to have caused the removal of any protected tree shall be 

required to replace the trees at a ratio of two (2) new trees for every one (1) 

protected trees removed.  Said replacement trees shall be planted on the original 

site or at an alternate location as designated by the director or tree committee 

within six (6) months of the tree removal, or the responsible party shall be billed by 

the city for the cost of replacing the trees at a ratio of 2:1.  The fiscal responsibility 

for removal of protected trees shall run with the property and be enforceable upon 

future property owners.  (Ord. 01-6 § 3 (part): prior code § 17.15) 
 

12.24.145 Tree protection plan required. 
A. In order to protect existing trees during and after construction of a project, 
and in order to maximize chances for their subsequent survival, a tree protection 

plan (TPP) may be required at the discretion of the Director.  The requirement to 

prepare a TPP may be waived if the director determines that no trees will be 

impacted by the project. When a TPP is waived, the director may require a tree 

report or tree survey report. The director shall not waive a TPP when 50% or more 

of the existing tree canopy is to be removed. 
 
B. The TPP shall follow guidelines as set out in the City of St Helena Tree 

Maintenance Guide. 
 
C. Trees designated as protected trees in a TPP shall be treated as city protected 

trees as defined by this Chapter for the duration of the project. 
 
12.24.150 Protection of trees during and after construction activity. 

 
A.  During construction activity within the drip line of a protected tree inside or 

outside the public right-of-way, no person shall, without notification to the tree 

committee in writing thirty (30) days prior to commencement of work and 

permission from the director of public works, do the following: 
 

1. Change the amount of irrigation provided to any protected tree from that 

which was provided prior to the commencement of construction activity; 
 

2. Trench, grade or pave into within the root zone of a protected tree; 
 

3. Change the , by more than two feet, grade elevations within the root zone 

an area from the drip line  of any protected tree outward to thirty (30) feet in 

distance; 



Proposed Revisions DRAFT July 24, 2014 

Page 16 of 20 

 

 

 
 

4. Park or operate any motor vehicle within the drip line area root zone of 

any protected tree except in designated parking areas; 
 

5. Place or store any equipment or construction materials within the drip 

line area  root zone of any protected tree except in designated parking areas; 
 

6. Attach any signs, ropes, cables or any other items to any protected tree; 
 

7. Cut or trim any branch of a protected tree for temporary construction 

purposes; 
 

8. Place or allow to flow into or over the root zone area of any protected 

tree any oil, fuel, concrete mix, paint, solvent, plaster, or other deleterious 

substance. 
 
B.  Each tree or group of trees to be retained after construction activity shall be 

protected by enclosure with a six (6) foot fence prior to grading or movement of 

heavy equipment. The minimum distance of the fence from the tree shall be at the 

drip line, but may be extended at the director’s discretion an additional ten (10) 

feet to include the root zone. Fencing shall remain in place until such times as the 

director is assured the trees are no longer in danger of construction damage. 
 

C.   Planting under a protected tree must conform to the water needs of the tree as 

determined by a certified arborist or landscape architect.  Only porous surfaces 

shall be installed in the drip line of a protected tree with the exception of public 

roadways and sidewalks. 
 

BD. Where written permission of the director is sought under this section, the 

director may grant such permission with reasonable conditions as may be 

necessary to effectuate the intent and purpose of this chapter. 
 
C. A protected tree shall be protected after construction activity in accordance 

with conditions imposed by the city and/or specifications adopted by the tree 

committee. (Ord. 01-6 § 3 (part): prior code § 17.16) 
 

 
12.24.160 Review of land use applications by tree committee. 

 
A. The planning director shall refer all subdivision, demolition, design review, 

use permit, development, improvements, and parcel map applications to the tree 

committee for review and recommendation; these applications  All subdivision and 

parcel map applications shall include a map identifying all existing trees over six 

(6) inches DBH in diameter measured four feet and six inches about the soil line or 

natural grade, upon the property proposed for division or development. All such 

trees shall be shown by size, species, location and health.  These applications shall 

also include a plan for the planting of street trees as deemed necessary by the Tree 

Committee or the Director. 



Proposed Revisions DRAFT July 24, 2014 

Page 17 of 20 

 

 

 
 

B.   The planning director shall refer all other discretionary planning project 

applications to the tree committee for review and recommendation if such 

applications pertain to property that has been identified as having a heritage tree or 

candidate heritage tree or if the project removes 50% or more of the parcels total 

tree canopy. Discretionary projects shall include, but not be limited to, design 

review, use permits, variances, and sign permits. Such applications shall include a 

site plan identifying the location of the any heritage tree(s) or candidate heritage 

tree, all protected trees, and tree canopy survey if applicable. 
 

C. The tree committee may request the public works designated staff member to 

review planning project referrals as needed. 
 
D. Within ten (10) days of the receipt of the planning project referral, the tree 

committee shall notify the planning director if further review of the project is 

warranted or if additional information is needed for adequate review of the project. 

Such information may include, but is not limited to, the submittal of an arborist’s 

report noting the health of the tree, or the on-site identification of trees that are 

proposed for removal. 
 
E. Within thirty (30) days of the receipt of the planning project referral or of the 

complete information requested for review of the referral, whichever is later, the 

tree committee shall forward recommendations to the planning director for 

consideration by the planning commission in its review of the project. 

Recommendations may include a requirement to prohibit the removal of trees, to 

redesign a project to lessen the impact upon trees, to plant additional trees to 

mitigate for tree removal, or to maintain the trees in accordance with conditions 

imposed. 
 
F. When applicable, the tree committee shall determine the type of tree that shall 

be planted in planting strips along the street frontage. Property owners shall be 

responsible for the planting and maintenance of the trees in the planting strips. 
 
G. The director shall be notified of any applications for curb, gutter, sidewalk, 

street light or driveway installations or other proposed improvements which might 

require the removal of protected trees, cause injury to any protected tree or 

interfere with the fulfillment of protected tree plantings. (Ord. 01-6 § 3 (part): prior 

code § 17.17) 
 

 
 

12.24.170 Solar shade control. 

 
A. No person owning or in control of a property shall allow a tree or shrub to be 

placed, or, if placed, to grow on such property, subsequent to the installation of a 

solar collector on the property of another so as to impede reasonable use of the 

"collect or absorption area" as defined in Section 801.5 of the California Civil 

Code. For the purpose of this chapter, the location of a solar collector is required to 

comply with the local building and setback regulations. 



Proposed Revisions DRAFT July 24, 2014 

Page 18 of 20 

 

 

 
 

B. Nothing in this section shall apply to the replacement of a tree or shrub which 

has been growing prior to the installation of a solar collector and which, 

subsequent to the installation of such solar collectors, dies. (Ord. 01-6 § 3 (part): 

prior code § 17.18) 
 

 
 

12.24.180 Appeal. 

 
Any person shall have the right to appeal an action of the tree committee to the city 

council. The appeal shall be filed with the city clerk within ten (10) days after 

notice of the action or decision being appealed. Prior to scheduling the appeal for 

the city council the city clerk shall forward the appeal to the tree committee for 

comment and recommendation to the council. A decision of the city council shall 

be final. (Ord. 01-6 § 3 (part): prior code § 17.19) 

 
12.24.190 Liability. 

 
Nothing contained in this chapter shall be deemed to impose any liability upon the 

city, its officers, employees or members of the tree committee nor to relieve the 

owner of any private property from the duty to keep any tree upon his or her 

property or under his or her control in such a condition as to prevent it from 

constituting a public nuisance as defined in Section 12.24.080 of this chapter. (Ord. 

01-6 § 3 (part): prior code § 17.20) 

 
12.24.200 Violations, Enforcement, Penalties and Fines. 

 
A. The director shall be charged with the enforcement of this chapter. 

 
B. Violation of this chapter is a threat to public health, safety or welfare and is 

thus declared to be unlawful and a public nuisance.  Any such nuisance may be 

abated and/or restored by the director and also may be abated pursuant to Chapter 

1.12 of this code, except that the civil penalty for a violation shall be one thousand 

dollars ($1,000) plus the value of any destroyed tree based on an appraisal by a 

certified arborist. The director shall give ten (10) days written notice to comply to 

any property owner who is violating the provisions of this chapter or rules, 

regulations and requirements adopted pursuant hereto. Upon failure of the property 

owner to comply with a notice to abate a public nuisance, the director may cause 

compliance by having city employees or contractors perform the necessary work, 

may assess the cost thereof to the property owner, and impose a lien on the 

property for the cost thereof plus a fifteen percent (15%) administrative charge. 

 
C. Any person who violates this chapter is guilty of a misdemeanor for each day in which 

the violation occurs. Such violation shall be punishable by a fine of not more than one 

thousand dollars ($1,000.00), or by imprisonment not to exceed six months, or by both 

such fine and imprisonment, pursuant to Chapter 1.20 of this code. 



Proposed Revisions DRAFT July 24, 2014 

Page 19 of 20 

 

 

 
 

C.   Every person who violates this chapter is guilty of a "public nuisance" as 

defined in Sections 370 and 371 of the Penal Code and in Section 34808 of the 

Civil Code. For the purposes of this chapter, a violation is deemed an infraction, 

punishable by a fine of not less than fifty dollars ($50.00) nor more than one 

hundred dollars ($100.0) plus the value of the tree, or imprisonment not to exceed 

six months, or both such fine and imprisonment. 
 

D. Upon recommendation of the city arborist the city may rescind an existing 

business license or permit, deny an application for a new business license or 

permit, or deny the renewal of a business license or permit to operators who are 

found in violation of this chapter. 
 

D. E. The remedies herein are not exclusive. The city may avail itself of any other 

remedies available in equity or at law. (Ord. 02-5 § 16; Ord. 01-6 § 3 (part): prior 

code § 17.21) 

 
SECTION 2:   Severability. The City Council hereby declares every section, paragraph, 

sentence, cause and phrase is severable. If any section, paragraph, sentence, clause or 

phrase of this ordinance is for any reason found to be invalid or unconstitutional, such 

invalidity, or unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of the 

remaining sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses or phrases. 

 
SECTION 3:   CEQA.  The City Council hereby finds that this that the action to adopt 

these amendments to the Tree and Other Vegetation Ordinance is exempt from the 

provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act (Public Resources Code Section 

21000, et seq.) (CEQA) because the action consists of (1) an action taken by a regulatory 

agency as authorized by state law to assure the maintenance, restoration, or enhancement 

of a natural resource where the regulatory process involves procedures for protection of 

the environment, and (2) an action by a regulatory agency authorizing actions for the 

protection of the environment, pursuant to Title 14, California Code of Regulations, 

Sections 15307 and 15308, respectively. The action is also categorically exempt from 

CEQA pursuant to Section 15301(h) because it is an action to maintain existing 

landscaping and native growth. 
 
SECTION 4:  Inclusion in the St. Helena Municipal Code. It is the intention of the St. 

Helena City Council that the text in Sections 1, 2 and 3 be made a part of the St. Helena 

Municipal Code and that the text may be renumbered or relettered and the word 

"Ordinance" may be changed to "Section," "Chapter," or such other appropriate word or 

phrase to accomplish this intention. 
 
SECTION 5:  This ordinance shall take effect and be in force 30 days after its adoption, 

and a summary of this ordinance shall be published once with the names of the members 

of the Council voting for and against the ordinance in the St. Helena Star, a newspaper of 

general circulation published in the city of St. Helena. 



Proposed Revisions DRAFT July 24, 2014 

Page 20 of 20 

 

 

 
 

THE FOREGOING ORDINANCE was introduced at a regular meeting of the St. Helena 

City Council on the th 
day of , 2014, and was adopted at a regular meeting of 

the St. Helena City Council on the day of , 2014 by the following vote: 
 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 
 

 
 

Ann Nevaro, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
 

 
 

Delia Guijosa, City Clerk 



Thia page intentionally left blank.



1

Kathy Robinson

From: Kacey Stotesbery <kacey@stotesbery.com>
Sent: Thursday, August 20, 2015 4:26 PM
To: Kathy Robinson
Subject: Re: Draft Tree Ordinance

Fantastic, thank you! 

Sent from my iPhone  

On Aug 20, 2015, at 10:09 AM, Kathy Robinson <krobinson@cityofsthelena.org> wrote: 

Hi Kasey, 

I spoke to Cindy and she said that we should distribute when the agenda is posted, so I will be 
sure to include on the next agenda.  

Kathy 

From: Kacey Stotesbery [mailto:kacey@stotesbery.com]  
Sent: Monday, August 17, 2015 8:03 PM 
To: Kathy Robinson <krobinson@cityofsthelena.org> 
Subject: Fwd: Draft Tree Ordinance 

Kathy can you please disseminate the mayors comments below to the rest of the tree committee. 

Thank you! 
Kacey 

Sent from my iPhone  

Begin forwarded message: 

From: Alan Galbraith <agalbraith94574@gmail.com> 
Date: August 16, 2015 at 9:32:54 PM PDT 
To: Kacey Stotesbery <kacey@stotesbery.com> 
Cc: Noah Housh <NoahH@cityofsthelena.org>,  Jennifer Phillips 
<JenniferP@cityofsthelena.org> 
Subject: Draft Tree Ordinance 

I have reviewed with care the draft tree ordinance.  My comments here relate 
strictly to drafting issues -- and one legal question.  As the ordinance will be 
coming before the City Council, I do not believe, consistently with the Brown 
Act, that I should be commenting on the merits of the proposed ordinance at this 
time.  

1. On page 2, 1224.010E, fix spacing problem -- cit y' s.

ITEM 6E Draft comments from Galbraith



2

2. On page 2, eighth paragraph, suggest that the ordinance identify the "City of St. 
Helena" as opposed to just "city". 
  
3. On page 2, ninth paragraph, fix multiple spacing problems.  --  paragraph 
begins C it y 
  
4. On page 3, first paragraph, fix spacing problem: DBH, not "D BH" 
  
5. On page 3, with respect to "Director", suggest adding after "Director" "unless 
otherwise indicated".  Reason: ordinance later refers to Planning Director. 
  
6. On page 3, fourteenth paragraph (at bottom), fix two spacing problems -- P 
reject and me ans. 
  
7. On page 4, top paragraph, fix four spacing problems in paragraph that begins 
with P reject arborist. 
  
8. On page 5, fix spacing problem in first full paragraph that begins with P runing. 
  
9.  On page 4, third full paragraph, suggest non-deletion of "works employee who 
satisfies the ANSI A300. 
  
10. On page 4, fourth full paragraph, suggest deletion of "by definition" in second 
second sentence in paragraph that begins with "Replacement Tree". 
  
11. On page 4, suggest complete deletion of sixth full paragraph that being with 
"Rood zone".  (Root zone is defined is fully defined in the next paragraph." 
  
12. On page 6, third full paragraph, fix two spacing problems '' S treat and tee e. 
  
13. On page 6, in ninth full paragraph, suggest addition of "report" after 
"Verification of tree protection". 
  
14. On page 7, carryover paragraph, line six, suggest changing "devise" to " 
adopt" so that the sentence begins" " The committee shall adopt etc." 
  
15. In second paragraph under 12.24.050, second line, change "he" to "the" so that 
it reads: "unless the director approves" etc. 
  
16. On page 8, under C., line 7, suggest deletion of "or destroyed".  If the tree is 
destroyed, then the conditions cannot be corrected. 
  
17. On page 9, carryover paragraph: here is my legal question: my understanding 
is that our code provides that trees on Main Street are the responsibility of the 
City and not of the adjacent property owner.  If that understanding is correct, then 
how can we place the responsibility for repair of curb and sidewalk damage on the 
property owner if caused by city trees? 
  
18.  On page 15 in the paragraph that begins 12.24.145A, third line "Director" 
should be lower case -- director. 
  



3

19. On page 15 in the paragraph that begins "The TPP" add a period after "St" in 
St. Helena. 
  
20. On page 20, under "B.", fourth line, suggest "up to" before "an additional"so 
that the sentence in part reads "director's discretion up to an additional ten" etc. 
  
21. On page 16, under 12.24.160, suggest last sentence be restated as follows: 
"These applications shall also include a plan for the planting of trees for review 
and approval by the tree committee or the director."  Note changes to lower case. 
  
22. On page 17, under F, suggest adding "and gallonage size" after "determine the 
type".  It seems to me that the tree committee should specify the minimum 
gallonage size of a replacement tree.  (Of course, the property owner could go for 
a larger gallonage tree.) 
  
23. On page 18, under 12.24.180, third line, suggest adding "decision by" after 
"the appeal for" so that the sentence reads in part "scheduling the appeal for 
decision by the city council" etc. 
  
24.  On page 18, under C, change "Chapter" to (lower case) "chapter". 
  
25/  On page 19, as to sections 3, 4, and 5, do we need them?  It seems to me that 
these should be in the Staff Report but are not necessary in the ordinance itself. 
  
I am hopeful those comments are useful. 
  
  
Alan 
  
  
  
  


	09-10-2015 Meeting
	08-13-2015 TC Minutes (draft)
	St Helena Tree Management Guide 092211
	STH TTM Cover Page
	Tree Management Guide 042308

	tree permit process for goals work (StotesberyNew08132015Meeting)
	Update on Mitigated Trees 09-2015
	TreeOrdinanceRevisionDraft 081114
	Galbraith-Email to Kasey Memo Style
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

